
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the American with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation for this meeting please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

 

 
 
ITEM  TOPIC 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Invocation 
 

4. Approval of January Planning Board Minutes 
 

5. SUP 21-01 Wait Ave Pulte Subdivision (FKA Thales Academy) 
 

6. Joint Work Session, March 15, 2022 
 

7. Volunteer Appreciation Dinner, April 26, 2022 
 

8. Planning Board Training Needs 
 

9. Planning Director's Report  
 

a. Planning Department Updates  
b. Development Activity Report  
 

10. Town Attorney’s Report 
 

11. Other Business 
 

12. Adjournment 

Agenda 
Planning Board 

Monday, February 28, 2021 
7:00 PM 



1 | P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
  A u g u s t  2 3 ,  2 0 2 1  
 
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

  
 
MINUTES 
 

PRESENT:   Mark Powers, Chairman             Donnie Lawrence, Board Member 
          Davion Cross, Board Member  Mike Moss, Board Member  
  Jim Schwartz, Board Member  Steve Hill, Board Member  
  Dave Neil, Town Attorney   Meredith Gruber, Planning Director 
  Shelly Raby, Development Specialist James Carter, Planner I 
 
ABSENT:   
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Mark Powers called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Board collectively recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. INVOCATION 

Board Member Moss delivered the invocation. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Moved by Board Member Donnie Lawrence and second by Board Member Jim Schwartz. 
The motion to approve the minutes of December 20, 2021, carried by unanimous vote. 

 
5. MA 21-07 Public Works Facility 

 
Planner I James Carter presented the Public Works Facility rezoning case. The applicant 
has requested to change the zoning from Residential Low (RL) to Business, Industrial, and 
Technology (BT). There is an annexation case, ANX 21-05, associated with this rezoning 
request. 
 
 
 
 

Planning Board Meeting 
January 24, 2022- 7:00 PM 

502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC 27571 



2 | P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
  A u g u s t  2 3 ,  2 0 2 1  
 
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

Board Member Mike Moss made a motion to recommend approving MA 21-07 Public 
Works Facility rezoning case from RL to BT, Second Davion Cross, carried by 
unanimous vote.  
 

6. MA 21-09 Wallbrook Rezoning Case 
 
Planning Director Meredith Gruber presented The Wallbrook rezoning case to the 
Planning board. The applicant requested to change the zoning from GI-CZ and RL to  
GC-CZ with proposed zoning conditions. This case has an associated annexation 
case, ANX 21-06.  
 
Austin Williams, Wallbrook Land Co. helped provide more information to the board 
about the Wallbrook development in regards to traffic congestion and roadway 
access. He also addressed questions associated with the TIA analysis.  
 
Board Member Jim Schwartz made a motion to recommend approval of          
MA 21-09 Wallbrook Rezoning. Second Donnie Lawrence, carried by unanimous 
vote.  
 

7. Volunteer Appreciation Dinner, April 26, 2022 
 
Planning Director Meredith Gruber informed the Planning Board about the 
appreciation dinner that will be held for all of the voluntary boards as a thank you for 
their service to the Rolesville Community.  
 

8. Planning Director’s Report  
a. Introduced the new submittal process for development project submittal, 

also there is a large list of submittals. There are still a few projects 
operating under the UDO. Also, Meredith about Planning Board shirt 
options.  
 

b. Meredith informed the board that the development report is available on the 
town's website.  

 
 
 
 
 

9. Town Attorney Report 



3 | P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
  A u g u s t  2 3 ,  2 0 2 1  
 
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

 
Dave Neil clarified that the Town of Rolesville only owns the 805 E Young property 
that is located on the eastern side of the 401 Bypass. 

9.   Other Business  

 Mike Moss asked about Term-limits and when they would go into effect for the board. The 
Board has not yet adopted a policy for Term-limits.    

 

10. ADJOURN 

There being no more business before the board, upon a motion by Board Member 
Donnie Lawrence and second by Board Member Mike Moss, the motion to adjourn 
carried by unanimous vote. The meeting adjourned at 8:56 p.m.  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 

Mark Powers, Planning Board Chairman      James Carter, Planner I 



 
 
  
 
 

 
Town of Rolesville 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

 

Memorandum 
TO: Planning Board 

FROM: Mike Elabarger, Senior Planner 

DATE: February 24, 2022 

RE: Agenda Item 5. - February 28, 2022 Planning Board Meeting 

 SUP 21-01 - Wait Avenue Subdivision (aka Pulte fka Thales Academy) 

Application Request 

on an Amendment to the previously Approved SUP 18-01, includes a Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) Master Plan, Conditions of Approval, and associated exhibits. The development proposes 
102 single-family detached lots/dwelling units, 191 townhome lots/dwelling units, and 15.38 acres 
for non-residential development, on a total area of 93.73 acres.  The site is located at the 
southwest corner of Wait Avenue (NC Highway 98) and Averette Road on the northern extent of 
the Town’s jurisdiction, and is contiguous to the Austin Creek Subdivision to the west, and the 
Elizabeth Springs subdivision to the south.   

NOTE: The process of the Planning Board reviewing applications that will be presented to the 
Town Board of Commissioners via an Evidentiary Quasi-Judicial hearing is required per UDO 
Section 6.2.7.(c)(7).  This process does not continue under the Land Development Ordinance 
(LDO).  

Background 

Summary Information 
Acreage:   93.73 
Current Zoning:  Residential and Planned Unit Development (R&PUD) zoning district per the 

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). 
Property Owner: Thales Academy – PIN’s 1850950449, 1860045778 
Developer:   Pulte Home Company, LLC / Chris Raughley / Bob Anderson 
Project Contacts: Riyad Baroudi/Jeff Oden/Craig Duerr – Stewart  
 
Existing Conditions 
The subject properties are currently undeveloped and partially wooded, within Rolesville’s Town’s 
corporate limits, and are zoned the Residential and Planned Unit Development (R&PUD) zoning 
district under the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  The land to the south is the Elizabeth 
Springs subdivision, also zoned R&PUD.  The land to the west is in the Wake Forest Town limits 
and is the (developed) Austin Creek residential subdivision. The site is then bound by Wait 
Avenue (NC Highway 98) to the north, and Averette Road to the east. 
 



 
Town of Rolesville 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

Residential Planned Unit Development Requirements (Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) Article 6.2)  

The UDO specifies, “The R&PUD is intended to be primarily a pedestrian-oriented residential 
community that also contains a limited mix of retail, office and professional, civic and government 
uses. Residential offerings are to be varied and include both detached and attached dwellings.”   

The associated PUD Master Plan requires a Special Use Permit (SUP) application be considered 
by the Town Board of Commissioners under a quasi-judicial public hearing setting.  The Applicant 
shall make presentations demonstrating compliance with the Findings of Fact at the hearing 
before the Town Board.   

Summary of SUP 21-01 
The proposed PUD Master Plan proposes 102 single-family detached dwelling units, 191 
townhome dwelling units, and 3 distinct tracts (2.46 acres, 4.98 acres, and 7.94 acres) for future 
non-residential (“commercial”) development and use.  The proposed residential density is under 
4 units/acre. The 3 non-residential use tracts occupy the three exterior corners of the subdivision 
adjacent major road corridors, which are preferable locations for non-residential development (as 
opposed to single family detached or attached housing).  
 
The proposed conditions commit to the maximum dwelling units, maximum non-residential square 
footage, front-loading of residential development, traffic impact improvements, open space 
compliance, residential foundation types and architectural feature.  Several deviations from the 
UDO are also requested (see further in this report).   
 
2002 Thoroughfare Plan and Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 
 
In the vicinity of this project, the Thoroughfare Plan identifies Wait Avenue as a Minor Arterial with 
an expected ultimate right of way of 110’, built to 4 lanes Divided with a raised median, curb and 
gutter, bike lanes, and sidewalk.  Averette Road is a Minor Arterial, with variable right of way, built 
with 4 lanes divided, a raised (narrow) median, curb and gutter, bikes lanes, and sidewalks.   
 
The applicant has submitted a Traffic Impact Study (TIA) as required by the Town’s Unified 
Development Ordinance.  The TIA report was prepared by Stantec; Attachments 9 and 10 are a 
summary and full report.  The summary details projected Peak Hour traffic to be generated, and 
the graphics detail physical improvements associated with Wait Avenue and Averette Road in the 
vicinity of the project. The Executive Summary of the Final Report goes into further detail of the 
specific improvements. 
 
Proposed Condition #3 commits to construction, or payment of fee-in-lieu of, the recommended 
road improvements from the TIA documents. 
 
Request for deviations of the Residential and Planning Unit Development District (R&PUD) 
Requirements 
 
UDO Section 6.2, for the R& PUD District: 
“The requirements set forth in this section (6.2) are established by the Town Board of 
Commissioners as standards that presumptively will result in the provision of a village 
environment contemplated by this section and by the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The 
Board recognizes, however, that due to the nature of a tract of land, or the nature of the facilities 



 
Town of Rolesville 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

proposed for installation, or other factors, the underlying objectives of this section (6.2) may be 
achieved even though the standards are not adhered to with mathematical precision.  
Therefore, deviations from these standards may be permitted whenever it is determined that 
the underlying standards can be met without strict adherence to them and because peculiarities 
in the developer’s tract of land or the facilities proposed would make it unreasonable to require 
strict adherence to these standards.  
 
Whenever some deviation from the standards set forth in this article pursuant to the paragraph 
immediately above is authorized, the official record of the action taken on the development 
application shall contain a statement of the reasons for allowing the deviation.” 

 
Proposed Condition #6 requests four (4) deviations:  
 

1. Front facades, covered porches, and balconies of single family detached and 
townhouses may encroach up to five (5) feet into the front setback.  

2. Front facing, single door, garages shall be permitted regardless of lot width.  Garages 
may protrude up to five (5) feet beyond the front building line of residences.  

3. Parking shall be permitted in driveways in the front of residences. 
4. Townhouses shall have a minimum building separation of 20 feet.  

 
Planning Staff Recommendation 
The Technical Review Committee has reviewed the application through four (4) submittals, and 
all the Staff Comments were resolved. The four (4) deviations from the UDO shall be determined 
to be consistent with the UDO as part of the Quasi-Judicial hearing process by the Town Board. 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Board recommends the Town Board hold an Evidentiary (Quasi-
Judicial) hearing per UDO Section 2.1.2.b. and review, hear, consider and approve, approve with 
conditions, or disapprove as appropriate SUP 21-01.   
 
Town Board of Commissioners 
This application is tentatively scheduled for the April 5th, 2022 Town Board meeting, where an 
Evidentiary (Quasi-Judicial) hearing will be held. 
 
Suggested Planning Board motion 
I move to Recommend Approval of SUP 21-01, Wait Avenue Subdivision (aka Pulte fka Thales 
Academy) to the Town Board of Commissioners.  
 
Attachments 
 
# Type Date 
1 Location Map ---- 
2 Special Use Permit Application 12/20/2020 
3 PUD Master Plan Amendment 02/23/2022 
4 Conditions of Approval 02/23/2022 
5 Utility Plan 02/23/2022 
6 Slope Analysis 02/23/2022 
7 Phasing Plan 02/23/2022 
8 Neighborhood Meeting Summary    (meeting held 5/12/2021)  
9 Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) Summary document 06/21/2021 
10 Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) Final Report 05/24/2021 



 
Town of Rolesville 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

 



WAIT AVE

AV
ER

ET
TE

RD

SWEETCLOVER
DR

PLOTT
HOU

ND
LN

LONGMONT DR

/

Attachment 1 - Location Map
SUP 21-01 Wait Ave Subdivision (aka Pulte fka Thales Academy) 

0 300 600 Feet

Planning Department

WAKE FOREST
TOWN LIMITS

Legend
Parcels
SUP 21-01 Site 





 2 

 

 Special Use Permit Application 

 
Town of Rolesville Planning 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.554.6517 

 

Applicant Statement 

Provide justification for each statement. If necessary, attach a separate sheet. 

1. The proposed development and/or use will not materially endanger public health or safety. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

2. The proposed development and/or use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

3. The proposed development and/or use will be in harmony with the scale, bulk, coverage, density, and 

character of the surrounding area. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

4. The proposed development and/or use will generally conform to Rolesville’s Comprehensive Plan and 

other adopted plans. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

5. The proposed development and /or use is appropriately located with respect to transportation facilities, 

water and sewer supply, fire and police protection, and similar facilities. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

6. The proposed development will not cause undue traffic congestion or create a traffic hazard. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

7. The proposed development and/or use comply with all applicable requirements of the Unified Development 

Ordinance. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________________________  

 



 3 

 

 Special Use Permit Application 

 
Town of Rolesville Planning 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.554.6517 

 

Property Owner Information 

Wake County PIN Property Owner Mailing Address Zip Code 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    



 4 

 

 Special Use Permit Application 

 
Town of Rolesville Planning 

 

PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.554.6517 

 

Proposed Conditions 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________________  



SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

APPLICATION STATEMENT 
FORMER THALES SITE 

ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 
1. The proposed development and/or use will not materially endanger public health or safety. 

 
The proposed development will not materially endanger public health or safety. It introduces 
well-designed development and outdoor space that will be constructed in the interest of 
public health and safety by providing safe pedestrian facilities that allow access to 
commercial services. This encourages an active, yet safe lifestyle. Road improvements in 
conformity with traffic impact analysis recommendations will also be made to ensure public 
safety.  

 
2. The proposed development and/or use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining 

property. 
 

The proposed development will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property, but 
rather will help raise nearby property values. The addition of high-quality homes, recreation 
space, and access to commercial space will be assets to adjoining properties and to the 
larger northern Rolesville area.  

 
3. The proposed development and/or use will be in harmony with the scale, bulk, coverage, 

density, and character of the surrounding area. 
 

The proposed development will with be harmony with the scale, bulk, coverage, density, and 
character of the surrounding area. Existing and approved developments surround this one, 
including Elizabeth Springs and Austin Creek, feature similar residential developments. The 
proposed development will be in context with these adjacent sites by orienting commercial 
uses to minimize impact on the surrounding residential uses. It will also be in keeping with 
the context and character of northern Rolesville overall. 

   
4. The proposed development and/or use will generally conform to Rolesville’s Comprehensive 

Plan and other adopted plans. 
 

The proposed development will conform to Rolesville’s Comprehensive Plan and other 
adopted plans. It will provide high-quality housing options, retail development, and create a 
community space with recreation amenities, which were all aims of the Comprehensive Plan. 
It also conforms with the adopted Future Land Use Map, which identifies the site as Medium 
Density Residential, which allows for a mix of housing types with limited non-residential use, 
as is proposed.  

 



 

5. The proposed development and/or use is appropriately located with respect to transportation 
facilities, water and sewer supply, fire and police protection, and similar facilities. 

 
The proposed development is appropriately located with respect to transportation facilities, 
water and sewer supply, and fire and police protection. It is located on several existing and 
planned thoroughfares that allow for access into and out of the development by residents, 
visitors, and emergency services. These thoroughfares will benefit from any identified 
upgrades from the Traffic Impact Analysis as well. The development will utilize water and 
sewer service from that South that is already being extended for other developments.  

 
6. The proposed development and/or use will not cause undue traffic congestion or create a 

traffic hazard. 
 

The proposed development will be the subject of a Traffic Impact Analysis. The project will 
include making necessary transportation improvements to mitigate any potential impacts 
identified in the forthcoming analysis.  

 
7. The proposed development and/or use will comply with all applicable requirements of the 

Unified Development Ordinance.  
 

The proposed development will comply with all applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Ordinance. The applicant will work with Town Staff throughout the site plan 
and approval process to ensure that all UDO requirements are met.  

 



SPECIAL USE PERMIT  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
FORMER THALES SITE 

ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 
These conditions stated below shall be in addition to the previous conditions stated in approved 
order for SUP 18-01. 
 

1. All single-family detached homes, shall either be “crawl space” or “stem wall” type 
foundations. Those houses with “stem wall” type foundations shall be made accessible in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) at the discretion of the 
homebuilder and/or homebuyer. 
 

2. The following nonresidential uses shall be prohibited:  
 

a. Adult entertainment 
b. Jail/detention facility 
c. Animal service 
d. Electronic gaming 
e. Event Venue 
f. Bar, nightclub tavern. Lounge, not associated with a restaurant 
g. Temporary uses 
h. Major vehicle repair 

 
3. Lighting shall be designed such that light does not spill onto adjacent properties and not 

exceed ½ foot candles when measured at the property line of adjacent private properties.  
 

4. A minimum of 10% open space is required with minimum 35% of the required open for 
recreation.  Open space and active recreation shall otherwise be developed in accordance 
UDO Article 15. 
 

5. Non-Residential uses shall be exempt from the ground floor square footage maximum 
described in UDO 6.2.4.1. 
 

6. Frontage build out for Non-Residential uses shall be exempt from the 70% minimum as 
described in UDO 6.2.4.2. 
 

7. Non-Residential buildings shall be exempt from the requirement to be clustered toward 
the center or rear of site as described in UDO 8.3.6. 



WAIT AVENUE

CA
RR

IE
 M

AY
 L

AN
E

OLD PEARCE ROAD

LO
NGMONT 

DRIV
E

AV
ER

ET
TE

 R
O

AD

65' R.O.W. COLLECTOR

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED
(STRIPED HATCH)

CONNECTION TO
ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL

PARCEL AND PUBLIC STREET
(GEMSTONE WAY)

LO
NGMONT 

DRIV
E

DA-4
9.30 ac. GROSS

5.12 ac. NET
RESIDENTIAL

7 UNITS

DA-5
16.56 ac. GROSS

11.17 ac. NET
RESIDENTIAL

42 UNITS

65' R
.O

.W
.

65' R.O.W. C
OLLECTOR

DA-6
14.99 ac. GROSS

13.69 ac. NET
RESIDENTIAL

132  UNITS

20' TYPE 'D
' BU

FFER

10' TYPE 'D' BUFFER

STO
P

STO
P

STOP

STOP

30' TYPE 'A' BUFFER

30' STREETSCAPE BUFFER

30' STREETSCAPE BUFFER

30' TYPE 'D ' & STREETSCAPE BUFFER

30' TYPE 'D ' & STREETSCAPE BUFFER

30
' T

YP
E 

'D
 ' 

& 
ST

R
EE

TS
C

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E 

'D
 ' 

&
ST

R
EE

TS
C

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

AUSTIN RIDGE PARKWAY

35 M.P.H.

35 M.P.H.

25 M
.P.H

.

DA-9
4.98 ac. GROSS
1.16 ac. WSHD
2.92 ac. NET

COMMERCIAL
75,000 SF

ADD RIGHT TURN LANE

AD
D

 M
ID

D
LE

 T
U

R
N

 L
AN

E

AD
D

 R
IG

H
T 

TU
R

N
 L

AN
E

10' TYPE 'D' BUFFER

10
' T

YP
E 

'D
' B

U
FF

ER

65' R.O.W. COLLECTOR

20' TYPE 'D' BUFFER

10' TYPE 'D' BUFFER

ST
O

P

ADD RIGHT TURN LANE

ADD LEFT TURN LANE

DA-7
2.46 ac. GROSS

1.22 ac. NET
COMMERCIAL

50,000 SF

DA-8
7.94 ac. GROSS
1.28 ac. WSHD
5.39 ac. NET

COMMERCIAL
75,000 SF

CLASSICAL W
AY

DA-1
21.11 ac. GROSS

9.10 ac. NET
RESIDENTIAL

81 UNITS

DA-2
9.25 ac. GROSS

3.76 ac. NET
RESIDENTIAL

19 UNITS

DA-3
5.74 ac. GROSS

3.26 ac. NET
RESIDENTIAL

12 UNITS

30' STREETSCAPE BUFFER

30
' T

YPE
'B' B

UFF
ER

30' TYPE 'A' BU
FFER

25' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

CONNECTION TO
ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL

PARCEL AND PUBLIC STREET
(CLASSICAL WAY)

STOP

PROPOSED FEATURES:

COMMERCIAL

ROAD

POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

50' RIPARIAN/POND BUFFER

POND/WETLAND

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED

10' SIDEWALK

LANDSCAPE / STREETSCAPE BUFFER

STOP SIGN
STOP

RESIDENTIAL
SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED/
TOWNHOME ATTACHED

*10' GREENWAY THROUGH OPEN SPACE

0 50 100 200

SCALE: 1" = 100'

FORMER THALES SITE
WAIT AVE. & AVERETTE RD.

P.U.D. MASTERPLAN

FEBRUARY 23, 2022

NORTH

WATERSHED DELINEATED
BASED ON TOPOGRAPHY

THIS SECTION OF TRAIL MAY BE ALTERED
WITH EVENTUAL SUBMITTAL OF PRELIMINARY
PLAT

*

10' SIDEWALK
ALONG WAIT AVENUE
OUTSIDE EX. R.O.W.

5' SIDEWALK
ALONG AVERETTE
RD.OUTSIDE EX.
R.O.W.

8' MULTI-USE PATH
WITHIN R.O.W.

RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-OUT

10' WIDE ASPHALT GREENWAY TRAIL SHALL
RUN THROUGH OPENSPACE AND PROVIDE
CONNECTIVITY BETWEEN PROPOSED PUBLIC
STREETS AND DEVELOPMENT AREAS. 55

.0
0'

55' DONATED R/W

 L
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
19

\C
19

00
3 

- W
ai

t R
oa

d\
D

W
G

S\
Ex

hi
bi

ts
\P

U
D

 M
as

te
rP

la
n\

C
19

00
3_

PU
D

_M
P.

dw
g 

 F
eb

 2
3,

  2
02

2 
- 1

:5
7p

m

8' MULTI-USE PATH
WITHIN R.O.W.

10' SIDEWALK
ALONG WAIT AVENUE
OUTSIDE EX. R.O.W.

55' DONATED R/W

55' DONATED R/W

-  INDICATES NO DEVIATION FROM ROLESVILLE R&PUD CODE

OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS

REVISIONS TO MASTERPLAN
MADE 02.11.22



PPAB 6891099v1 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
FORMER THALES SITE 

ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 
SUP 21-01 (the “SUP”) shall include the following conditions: 
 
1. The proposed development includes a mix of single family detached homes, townhouses, 

and non-residential uses (the “Project”).  Single family attached and townhouse housing 
types shall be permitted in those areas designated for “Residential Single Family 
Detached/Townhome Attached” (the “Residential Portion”) on the Planned Unit 
Development Master Plan (the “Master Plan”) prepared by Stewart dated February, 23, 
2022.  Residential development shall have a maximum overall density of 4 units per gross 
acre.  All of those uses permitted in UDO Section 6.2.4 shall be permitted in the Commercial 
Area (the “Non-Residential Portion”) shown on the Master Plan.  Non-residential uses shall 
be limited to a maximum of 200,000 square feet. 
 

2. The Residential Portion shall be developed prior to the Non-Residential Portion.  Accordingly, 
applicant has filed a preliminary plat application (the “Preliminary Plat”) together with this 
SUP.  The Preliminary Plat shall be reviewed and approved with this SUP consistent with UDO 
Section 6.2.7(c).11.  Development of the Non-Residential Portion shall not occur until the 
Town Board of Commissioners has approved a detailed site plan for the Non-Residential 
Portion.  
 

3. Development of the property shall include construction of, or payment of a fee-in-lieu for, 
road improvements recommended by the Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by Stantech 
dated May 24, 2021 (the “TIA”) and the TIA Review Report from NCDOT Congestion 
Management dated June 21, 2021.  

 
4. A minimum of 30% of the gross acreage of the Residential Portion shall be open space 
 
5. To improve community aesthetics, the Project shall be subject to the following architectural 

and design criteria (the “Design Commitments”): 
 

(a) Single-family detached homes shall have either “crawl space” or “stem wall” 
type foundations with a minimum rise of 20 inches from average grade across 
the front of the house to finished floor level at the front door.  To 
accommodate ADA accessibility, ranch or zero-entry homes may be 
constructed with slab on grade foundations with 1st floor owner suites.  



PPAB 6891099v1 

 
(b) The front façade of each single-family detached home and townhouse shall 

include at least two of the following:  
 

• Covered porch or stoop 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative gable, shake, trim, or cornice 
• Balcony, column, or dormer 

 
(c) The overall residential development shall Include a minimum of three (3) 

color families of siding and varied trim, shutter, and accent colors. 
 

(d) Single-family detached home and townhouse garage doors shall have 
windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments. 

 
6. As permitted by UDO Section 6.2, and as a result of the nature of the property and the 

proposed housing types, the Project shall be permitted the following deviations from the 
standards in UDO Section 6.2 which will result in a more efficient development pattern and a 
mix of housing types. 

 
(a) Front facades, covered porches, and balconies of single family detached and 

townhouses may encroach up to five (5) feet into the front setback.  
 
(b) Front facing, single door, garages shall be permitted regardless of lot width.  

Garages may protrude up to five (5) feet beyond the front building line of 
residences.  

 
(c) Parking shall be permitted in driveways in the front of residences. 

 
(d) Townhouses shall have a minimum building separation of 20 feet.  

 
 



SS

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ
BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ
BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZBZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ BZ BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ
BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

FO

FO

O
HW

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

O
H

W

O
H

W

O
H

W

OHW

OHW

OHW

O
H

W

FO

OHW

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OH
W

OHW

O
H

W

TPED

TPED
PWP

FF
=4

43
.3

7'

GM

8PT

6TREE DBL

HOUSE
REMAINS &
POND AREA

DIRT ROAD
DIRT ROAD

DIRT ROAD

DIRT ROAD

D
IR

T R
O

AD

SHED

WOOD FENCE

FOFO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

TPED

TPED
PWP

TPED

FOWP

FF=442.34'

TPED

TP
ED

FO
FO

FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

FO

FO
FO

GM

WM

30' CP&L EASEMENT

DB 2514, PG. 413

30
' C

P&
L E

AS
EM

EN
T

DB 
25

14
, P

G. 4
13

30' W.E.M. CORPDB 11995, PG. 2200

FF
=4

39
.3

5'

FF=438.70'

TPED

TPED

TPED

TPED

TPED

TPED
TPED

TPED

10TREE

6PT

RO

WALL

MISC. CONCRETE
SLABS REMAINS

CARPORT

12TREE

10SN
36QR

DIRT ROAD

DIRT ROAD
RO

CONCRETE
RUBBLE IN
CREEK BED

TPED

30
' C

P&
L E

AS
EM

EN
T

DB 
25

14
, P

G. 4
13

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5
L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L1
1

L1
2

L13

L1
4

L15

L1
6

L1
7

L1
8

L19

L2
0

L21

L2
2

L23

L2
4

L2
5

L26

L27

L2
8

L2
9

L30

L31

L32

L33

L3
4

L3
5

L36

L3
7

L38

L3
9

L4
0

L41

L42

L43

L4
4

L4
5

L4
6

L4
7

L4
8

L4
9

S0
0°

38
'4

6"
W

  1
,5

28
.6

5'

N89°20'55"W  1,473.09' S89°03'55"E  1,244.04' 209.19'

N
04

°5
3'

12
"E

  5
14

.5
9'

N
16°03'59"W

  316.17'

S68°35'37"E  485.04'

S68°25'54"E  288.97'

S68°30'31"E  311.10'

S68°36'16"E56.49'

S68°37'38"E  200.44'

RO

472.87'

NC HWY 98 - WAIT AVE.

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

50'

BUFFER

50
'

BU
FF

ER

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ
BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ
BZ

BZ

BZBZ
BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

BZ

50
' B

UF
FE

R

50
' B

U
FF

ER

50' BUFFER

50' BUFFER

50
' B

U
FF

ER

50'

50
' B

UF
FE

R

50' BUFFER

50' BUFFER

50' BU
FFER

50
' B

U
FF

ER

FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

SR
 1

94
5 

- A
VE

R
ET

TE
 R

D
.

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

SR
 1

94
5 

- A
VE

R
ET

TE
 R

D
.

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

LO
NGMONT 

DR.

(5
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

50005

50003

50008

50019

50002

50004

50007

50009

50017

50021

50020

50022

50023

50011

50013

50012

50014

50015
CA

RR
IE

 M
AY

 L
N.

(5
0'

 P
UB

LI
C 

R/
W

)

50018

50016

LONGMONT DR.
(50' PUBLIC R/W)

50010

W
M

WV

FF
=3

52
.0

0'WM

WV WV

TPED

W
V

GV

OHW

M
H

-3
(U

N
AB

LE
 T

O
 L

O
C

AT
E 

-
C

O
VE

R
ED

 IN
 D

EB
R

IS
)

RIM: 433.93'
OUT(S): 427.33'

MH-6RIM: 332.31'

IN(NE): 324.51'

OUT(SW): 324.49'

38
0

37
5

385

390

35
5

36
0

365 370

38
0

37
0

37
5

38
5

39
0

39
5

390

385

375
380

385

390

395

395

38
5

39
0

385

395

400

39
0

39
5

40
0

405
405

405

405

395

400

400

415

420

420

430

425

430

43
5

435

43
0

44
0

440

435

430

440

435

435

440

435

440

435

430

425

43
5

44
0

435

430

425

425

425

420

410

410

415

420

425

430

42
5

425

420
415

41
0

40
0

395

400

395

400

390

385

38
0

375

395
385

380

375

370

365

360
355

355

360

365

370

375

380

355
350

345

340 35
5

340

34
5

35
0

35
5

360

36
5

37
0

37
5

38
0

385

33
5

34
5

355

340

42
0

42
0

425

430

435

405

355

36
0

39
0.8

'

39
2.5

'

39
5.3

'

40
0.2

'

40
4.6

'

40
0.3

'

40
7.2

'

40
4.4

'

40
5.8

'

40
4.4

'

39
6.5

'

38
4.6

'

41
1.3

'

39
3.4

'

39
4.2

'

36
8.6

'

38
7.3

'

40
5.6

'

40
1.4

'

38
9.5

'

39
9.4

'

39
3.5

'

39
3.9

'

40
8.7

'

41
5.6

'

41
5.1

'
41

6.5
'

41
9.9

'

42
1.5

'

42
0.8

'

41
7.5

'

41
7.4

'

41
8.3

'

41
0.9

'

42
4.5

'

43
2.4

'

42
9.5

'

42
3.6

'

43
3.3

'

43
1.2

'

43
0.8

'

43
4.6

'
43

4.2
'

43
5.6

'

43
4.5

'

43
7.3

'

43
2.4

'

43
9.3

'

43
9.5

'

43
5.6

'

43
6.4

'

43
3.7

'

42
6.4

'

42
6.5

'

43
7.6

'

43
8.5

'

44
1.2

'

44
3.6

'

42
2.4

'

42
5.6

'

40
8.5

'

38
8.6

'

33
8.2

'

34
0.8

'

33
5.4

'

33
9.5

'

44
0.5

'

39
8.4

' 40
5

40
0

SS

SSWP

SS
W

P

8"PVC

350

8"
PV

C

MH-4
RIM: 338.49'
IN(N): 328.76'
OUT(SW): 328.66'

8"
PVC

8"PVC

HOA WALL
ESMT

C
AT

V

30' COR SEWER ESMT &

TOWF GREENWAY ESMT

50' BUFFER NOT SURVEYED

SCALED FROM BM 2006, PG. 2245

MH-5
RIM: 335.89'
IN(NE): 327.14'
OUT(SW): 327.09'

W
M

CONTROL CORNER
BM.2006 PG.1172

N: 804,368.96'
E: 2,158,295.66'

8"PVC

S89°02'15"E  712.07' (T)

6'CLF

KAVANAUGH ROAD

CLASSICAL WAY
65' PUBLIC R/W

11' TOR GREENWAY ESMT

BM 2021, PG. 119-126

10' PU
BLIC

 AC
C

ESS ESM
T

50' STR
EETSC

APE

30.01'

SR
 1945 - AVER

ETTE R
D

.
(60' PU

BLIC
 R

/W
)

433.3'

65'

433.8'

11'

85
.0

0'

BM 2016, PG. 884

50006

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

PKF

EIP W/NL
EIPEIP 2"

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP
EIP

EIP

EIP 2"

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EI
P

EIR

EIP

EI
R

EIR

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

NC HWY 98 - WAIT AVE.

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

BOR 1
BOR 2

BOR 3
BOR 4

TPED
T

FO

E

E

FOFO

U

U

U

U

U

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W WWWW

W

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

DA-1

DA-6

DA-4

CA
RR

IE
 M

AY
 L

AN
E

AV
ER

ET
TE

 R
O

AD

OLD PEARCE ROAD

DA-5

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED
(STRIPED HATCH)

DA-2

LO
NGMONT 

DRIV
E

WAIT AVENUE

DA-3

DA-9

ELIZABETH
SPRINGS

AUSTIN CREEK

DA-8

DA-7

FI
RE

LA
NE

FI
RE

LA
NE

FIRELANE

FIRELANE

FIRELANE

FI
RE

LA
NE

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

2 - STORY (REFER TO

ARCHITECTURE
DRAWINGS)

FIRELANE

FIRELANE

FIRELANE

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS SS SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS SS SS SS

THALESACADEMY

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

0 50 100 200

SCALE: 1" = 100'

FORMER THALES SITE
WAIT AVE. & AVERETTE RD.

UTILITY PLAN

MARCH 19, 2021

NORTH

EXISTING WATER LINE
PROPOSED WATER LINE
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

W

SS

UTILITY LEGEND:

WATERSHED DELINEATED
BASED ON TOPOGRAPHY

EXISTING 12" DIP
WATER LINE

TIE TO EXISTING
12" DIP WATER LINE
BY OTHERS

EXISTING 12" DIP
WATER LINE

EXSTING 8" SEWER START OF PLANNED
12" DIP WATERLINE
BY OTHERS

TIE TO PLANNED
8" DIP WATER LINE
BY OTHERS

EXISTING 12" DIP
WATER LINE

TIE TO EXISTING
12" DIP WATER LINE

TIE TO PLANNED
12" DIP WATER LINE
BY OTHERS

RELOCATE
OHE

 L
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
19

\C
19

00
3 

- W
ai

t R
oa

d\
D

W
G

S\
Ex

hi
bi

ts
\P

U
D

 M
as

te
rP

la
n\

C
19

00
3_

PU
D

_U
TI

L.
dw

g 
 F

eb
 1

1,
  2

02
2 

- 3
:5

4p
m

12" WATERLINE
BY OTHERS

REVISIONS TO MASTERPLAN MADE 02.11.22

FEBRUARY 23, 2022

       



WAIT AVENUE

CA
RR

IE
 M

AY
 L

AN
E

OLD PEARCE ROAD

LO
NGMONT 

DRIV
E

AV
ER

ET
TE

 R
O

AD

LO
NGMONT 

DRIV
E

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED
(STRIPED HATCH)CONNECTION TO

ADJACENT PARCEL
(GEMSTONE WAY)

DA-1
21.11 ac. GROSS

9.10 ac. NET

DA-4
9.30 ac. GROSS

5.12 ac. NET

DA-5
16.56 ac. GROSS

11.17 ac. NET

DA-2
9.52 ac. GROSS

3.76 ac. NET

DA-3
5.74 ac. GROSS

3.26 ac. NET

65' R.O.W. C
OLLECTOR

DA-6
14.99 ac. GROSS

13.69 ac. NET

AUSTIN RIDGE PARKWAY

35 M.P.H.

DA-9
4.98 ac. GROSS
1.16 ac. WSHD
2.92 ac. NET

DA-8
7.94 ac. GROSS
1.28 ac. WSHD
5.39 ac. NET

DA-7
2.46 ac. GROSS

1.22 ac. NET
EXISTING CONDITIONS:

50' RIPARIAN/POND BUFFER

POND/WETLAND

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED

FORMER THALES SITE
WAIT AVE. & AVERETTE RD.

P.U.D. SLOPE ANALYSIS

FEBRUARY 23, 2022

NORTH0 50 100 200

SCALE: 1" = 100'

SLOPE LEGEND

RANGE COLOR

0 - 5 %

5 - 10 %

10 - 15 %

15 - 20%

> 20 %

CA
RR

IE
 M

AY
 L

AN
E

OLD PEARCE ROAD

WATERSHED DELINEATED
BASED ON TOPOGRAPHY



OLD PEARCE ROAD

AV
ER

ET
TE

 R
O

AD

CONNECTION TO
ADJACENT PARCEL
(GEMSTONE WAY)

PROPOSED FEATURES:

POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

50' RIPARIAN/POND BUFFER

POND/WETLAND

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED

PHASING BREAKDOWN

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

DA - 1 (RESIDENTIAL), DA-2 (RESIDENTIAL), DA-3 (RESIDENTIAL), SEWER AND WATER

10' PEDESTRIAN GREENWAY

W PUBLIC WATER MAIN (SIZE VARIES)

SS PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER MAIN (SIZE VARIES)

DA 7 (COMMERCIAL) , DA - 8 (COMMERCIAL)

DA - 4 (RESIDENTIAL) , DA-5 (RESIDENTIAL), DA-6 (RESIDENTIAL)

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

PHASE 4

0 50 100 200

SCALE: 1" = 100'

FORMER THALES SITE
WAIT AVE. & AVERETTE RD.

P.U.D. PHASING PLAN

FEBRUARY 23, 2022

NORTH

NOTE: LOCATION OF GREENWAYS AND UTILITES ARE APPROXIMATE AND POSITIONED FOR CLARITY

PHASE 3
DA - 8, DA - 9

E - W COLLECTOR
PORTION TO PHASE 2

PHASE 1
DA - 1 , DA - 2 , DA - 3
SEWER AND WATER

PHASE 2
DA - 4, DA - 5, DA - 6

E-W COLLECTOR PORTION &
N-S COLLECTOR BETWEEN

PHASE 1 & 3

LITTLE RIVER WATERSHED
(STRIPED HATCH)ELIZABETH

SPRINGS

WAIT AVENUE

CA
RR

IE
 M

AY
 L

AN
E

LO
NGMONT 

DRIV
E

(W
ID

EN
IN

G
 A

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

)

 (IMPROVEMENTS AS REQUIRED)

PHASE 4
DA-7

AUSTIN RIDGE PARKWAY
CLASSICAL W

AY



 
 

 

www.stewartinc.com 
 

 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SUMMARY 
 
SUBJECT: Former Thales Site 

DATE:   Wednesday, May 12, 2021 

TIME:  6:00pm – 8:30pm 

LOCATION: Virtual on Zoom 

 
ATTENDEES:  
 
Stewart Team 
Craig Duerr 
Caroline Richardson 
Allison Evans 
 
Development Team 
Bob Anderson 
Chris Raleigh

Neighbors 
Marian Kirkoff (Carrie May Lane) 
Max & Jane Steele (2001 Wait Ave) 
Elizabeth Henley (Carrie May Lane) 
Ellen 
Joe Haggerty (Carrie May Lane)

 
 
Craig Duerr opened the meeting with introductions and provided an overview of the project  

 
• Initial submittal 12/23/20 with re-submittal on 4/1/21 for 2nd review 
• PUD / SUP Amendment for up to 320 single family attached and detached dwellings on ±80-

acres and up to 150,000 SF of future commercial on ±14 acres 
• Preliminary Plat for 298 total dwelling units including 107 Lots and 191 THs 
• Off-site improvements for waterline and site access along Wait Avenue 
 

Caroline Richardson provided an overview of the rezoning process 
 
• Amendment to previously approved Residential Planned Unit Development (R-PUD) subject to a 

quasi-judicial review and approval 
• Consistent with the Town of Rolesville’s Comprehensive Plan that advocates for a variety of 

types and accessible commercial uses.  
• Several zoning conditions related to residential architecture and commercial uses 
• Tentative Planning Board Meeting on Monday, June 28th subject to NCDOT review of the TIA 
• Tentative Council Meeting on Monday, July 20th  
 

Craig Duerr provided an overview of the Preliminary Plat 
 
• Phase 1 generally the same as previous submittal with added mix of Townhomes 
• Phase 2 expanded to include the Former Thales Site with added rear load Townhomes with an 

additional right-in / right-out driveway connection to Wait Avenue 
• Phase 3 excluded for future commercial on Averette Road and future residential to NW by others 
• Collector Streets provided with required connectivity to Austin Creek and Elizabeth Springs 
• Active Recreation Spaces provided including an Amenity Site and preservation of the existing 

pond to the southwest with trail connections  



 
 

 

www.stewartinc.com 
 

 
 

 
After the presentations, the Zoom meeting was opened for neighbor questions: 

 
What about the grey area on Northwest Corner? 
- Future residential subject to a Preliminary Plat by others. 
 
What about the wet areas? 
- Wetlands to remain, except for < 0.50 acres of impacts.  Existing pond to southwest to remain 
 
What about sidewalk? 
- Continuation of the 10’ multi-use path along Wait Avenue will be part of future development by 

others.  Sidewalk connectivity will be project to adjacent communities and future commercial. 
 
What will the commercial be? 
- At this time, the property owner has not committed to any specific type of commercial.  PUD/SUP 

has allocated up to150,000 SF of neighborhood scale commercial including a zoning condition 
to allow for up to 50,000 SF for a grocery store anchor. 

 
Has anything changed from the notification letter? 
- Assuming the layout that the neighbors obtained from the Town of Rolesville was part of the 

Preliminary Plat re-submitted on 4/1/21, the layout has not changed.  Colors were added to the 
Exhibit for presentation purposes.  A copy of the Exhibit has been distributed to attendees. 

 
Is the project is in context with the existing surroundings?  
- Proposed development is in context with the Town of Rolesville’s Future Land Use Plan 

designation of medium density residential for area across Wait Avenue from Carrie May Lane.  
The proposed development is scale with the Austin Creek and Elizabeth Springs communities. 

 
Will the northern access point have a stop sign or a stop light? 
- Access across from Carrie May Lane is anticipated to be a stop sign controlled with turn lanes 

subject to NCDOT review and approval. 
 
How many units are in each category of residential? 
- 107 Single Family Lots, 54 THs @ 28’, 40 THs @ 22’, and 97 Rear Loaded THs @ 24’  
 
Will all residential units will have garages? 
- Yes 
 
Has the safety of the driveway across from Carrie May Lane been reviewed? 
- Study of the vertical sight distance will be required for NCDOT approval of the Driveway Site 

Access Permit.  It is understood that residents have concerns with the hill and traffic speeds. 
 
What is the proposed density for each phase? 
- Density is calculated based on # of dwelling units divided by # of gross acres 
- Density for Phase 1 is 3.95 DU/AC based on 114 TH Lots on 28.86 acres. 
- Density for Phase 2 is 3.33 DU/AC based on 184 TH Lots on 55.17 acres. 



 
 

 

www.stewartinc.com 
 

 
 

- Overall Density is 3.55 DU/AC for the Phases 1 & 2 of the Preliminary Plat which is less than the 
Max. 4.0 DU/AC 

- Future adjacent lots for development total 17.76 acres (2.45 acres along Wait Ave and 15.31 
along Averette Road) 

 



 
 

 
 

 

  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
ROY COOPER  J. ERIC BOYETTE 

GOVERNOR   SECRETARY 
 

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
TRANSPORTATION MOBILITY & SAFETY DIVISION  
1561 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
RALEIGH, NC 27699-1561 

Telephone: (919) 814-5000 
Fax: (919) 771-2745 

Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 
 

Website: www.ncdot.gov 

Location: 
750 N. GREENFIELD PARKWAY 

GARNER, NC 27529 

 

 

June 21, 2021 
 
 

       Traffic Impact Analysis Review Report 
 

      Congestion Management Section 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Doumit Y. Ishak, Regional Engineer 
 

Clarence B. Bunting, IV, P.E. Project Engineer 
 

Braden M. Walker, P.E. Project Design Engineer 
 
 

 

  

Wait Avenue Mixed-Use  
Development 

TIA Project: SC-2021-140 
Division:  5 
County:    Wake 
 
 
 
  

http://www.ncdot.gov/


Wait Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
SC-2021-140 Raleigh Wake County 

Per your request, the Congestion Management Section (CMS) of the Transportation 
Mobility and Safety Division has completed a review of the subject site.  The comments 
and recommendations contained in this review are based on data for background 
conditions presented in the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) and are subject to the approval 
of the local District Engineer’s Office and appropriate local authorities. 
Date Initially Received by CMS 05/24/21 Date of Site Plan  NA 
Date of Complete Information 05/24/21 Date of Sealed TIA  05/24/21 

 
Proposed Development 

The TIA assumes the development is to be completed by 2026 and consist of the 
following: 

Land Use Land Use Code Size 
Single Family Housing 210 120 d.u 
Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) 220 200 d.u 
General Office 710 30,000 sq.ft. 
Shopping Center  820 230,000 sq.ft. 

 
Trip Generation - Unadjusted Volumes During a Typical Weekday 
 
 IN OUT TOTAL 

AM Peak Hour 225 227 452 
PM Peak Hour 462 488 950 

Daily Trips  9,838 
 
General Reference 

For reference to various documents applicable to this review please reference the 
following link: http://www.ncdot.org/doh/preconstruct/traffic/teppl/Topics/C-37/C-37.html 
 
Once the driveway permit has been approved and issued, a copy of the final driveway 
permit requirements should be forwarded to this office.  If we can provide further 
assistance, please contact the Congestion Management Section. 
 
Improvements By Others 

The analysis includes background improvements by others.  If these improvements are 
not in place at the time of construction, the site should provide these improvements or 
analysis demonstrating mitigation is not necessary. 
 

http://www.ncdot.org/doh/preconstruct/traffic/teppl/Topics/C-37/C-37.html


Existing Signal

Signal Proposed By Others

XXX

Drawing Not to Scale

All Distances in Feet

IPS

<XXX>

Storage

Distance Between Intersections

Internal Protected Stem

NCDOT Recommendation

Laneage Built By Others

Recommended Laneage

Existing Laneage

SC-2021-140

Rolesville, Wake County

Wait Ave Mixed-Use

XXX NCDOT Recommended Storage

Developer Proposed Signal

Monitor for Signal

SITE

N

A
v

e
re

tt
e
 R

d

Jones Dairy Rd

Old Pearce Rd

(Wait Ave)
NC-98 

A
v

e
re

tt
e
 R

d

A
c
c
e
s
s
 B

A
c
c
e
s
s
 A

C
a
rr

ie
 M

a
y
 L

n

G
ra

n
d

e
 B

lv
d

T
ra

d
it

io
n
s
 

2
5

0

2
2

5

2
2

5

100

100

175

Residential Phase

<9,900> <1,100> <850>

<15,000>

<
5
0
0
>

<
6

,7
0

0
>

1
0
0
 I

P
S

2
0
0
 I

P
S

100



Existing Signal

Signal Proposed By Others

XXX

Drawing Not to Scale

All Distances in Feet

IPS

<XXX>

Storage

Distance Between Intersections

Internal Protected Stem

NCDOT Recommendation

Laneage Built By Others

Recommended Laneage

Existing Laneage

SC-2021-140

Rolesville, Wake County

Wait Ave Mixed-Use

XXX NCDOT Recommended Storage

Developer Proposed Signal

Monitor for Signal

SITE

N

A
v

e
re

tt
e
 R

d

Jones Dairy Rd

Access D
Old Pearce Rd

(Wait Ave)
NC-98 

A
v

e
re

tt
e
 R

d

A
c
c
e
s
s
 C

A
c
c
e
s
s
 B

A
c
c
e
s
s
 A

C
a
rr

ie
 M

a
y
 L

n

G
ra

n
d

e
 B

lv
d

T
ra

d
it

io
n

s
 

2
2

5
E

x
te

n
d

 t
o

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 D

2
5

0

2
2

5

2
2

5

100

100

100

175

100

Full Build

<9,900> <1,100> <500> <350>

<15,000>

<
5

0
0

>
<

6
,7

0
0

>

200 IPS

1
0

0
 I

P
S

2
0

0
 I

P
S

100

1
0

0



 

Wait Avenue Mixed-Use 
Development  
 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

 

May 24, 2021  

 

Prepared for: 
 
Town of Rolesville, North Carolina 
502 Southtown Circle 
Rolesville, NC 27571 
 
Applicant: 
 
Pulte Home Company LLC 
1225 Crescent Green Drive, Suite 250 
Cary, NC 27518 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
801 Jones Franklin Road, Suite 300 
Raleigh, NC 27606 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Sign-off Sheet 

This document entitled Wait Avenue Mixed-Use Development Traffic Impact Analysis was prepared by Stantec Consulting 

Services Inc. (“Stantec”) for the account of the Town of Rolesville (the “Client”). Any reliance on this document by any 

third party is strictly prohibited. The material in it reflects Stantec’s professional judgment in light of the scope, schedule, 

and other limitations stated in the document and the contract between Stantec and the Client. The opinions in the 

document are based on conditions and information existing at the time the document was published and do not take into 

account any subsequent changes. In preparing the document, Stantec did not verify the information supplied to it by 

others. Any use which a third party makes of this document is the responsibility of such third party. Such a third party 

agrees that Stantec shall not be responsible for costs or damages of any kind, if any, suffered by it or any other third party 

as a result of decisions made or actions taken based on this document. 

Prepared by 

(signature) 

Pierre Tong, PE 

Reviewed by  

(signature) 

Jeff A. Weller, PE 

Approved by  

(signature) 

Matt Peach, PE, PTOE 

5/24/2021



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

Table of Contents 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................ I 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 1 

2.0 INVENTORY OF TRAFFIC CONDITIONS ..................................................................... 5 
2.1 STUDY AREA ................................................................................................................ 5 
2.2 PROPOSED ACCESS ................................................................................................... 5 
2.3 EXISTING ROADWAY CONDITIONS ............................................................................ 6 
2.4 FUTURE NO-BUILD ROADWAY CONDITIONS ............................................................ 6 

3.0 TRIP GENERATION ...................................................................................................... 9 
3.1 RESIDENTIAL PHASE TRIP GENERATION .................................................................. 9 
3.2 FULL-BUILD TRIP GENERATION ................................................................................. 9 

4.0 TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION .............................................................................................11 
4.1 SITE TRIP DISTRIBUTION ...........................................................................................11 
4.2 PASS-BY TRIPS ...........................................................................................................11 

5.0 TRAFFIC VOLUMES ....................................................................................................19 
5.1 AVAILABLE DATA.........................................................................................................19 
5.2 VOLUME BALANCING ..................................................................................................19 
5.3 FUTURE TRAFFIC GROWTH .......................................................................................19 
5.4 APPROVED DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC .......................................................................19 
5.5 NO-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES ...................................................................................20 
5.6 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES .................................................................20 
5.7 FULL-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES ................................................................................20 

6.0 TRAFFIC ANALYSIS ....................................................................................................25 
6.1 2021 EXISTING ANALYSIS ..........................................................................................27 
6.2 2026 NO-BUILD ANALYSIS ..........................................................................................28 
6.3 2026 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD ANALYSIS ........................................................................30 
6.4 2026 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD WITH IMPROVEMENTS ANALYSIS .................................31 
6.5 2026 FULL-BUILD ANALYSIS .......................................................................................33 
6.6 2026 FULL-BUILD WITH IMPROVEMENTS ANALYSIS ...............................................34 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................................................38 
8.1 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD RECOMMENDATIONS ..............................................................38 
8.2 FULL-BUILD RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................40 

9.0 CONCLUSIONS ............................................................................................................42 

10.0 REFERENCES ..............................................................................................................42 

APPENDIX ...............................................................................................................................42 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

 
Table ES-1: Level of Service & Delay Summary ......................................................................... v 
Table 1: Existing Conditions ....................................................................................................... 6 
Table 2: Residential Phase Trip Generation ............................................................................... 9 
Table 3: Full-Build Trip Generation ............................................................................................10 
Table 4: Level of Service Criteria ..............................................................................................25 
Table 5: Level of Service and Delay for 2021 Existing Conditions .............................................27 
Table 6: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 No-Build Conditions ............................................29 
Table 7: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Residential-Build Conditions ...............................30 
Table 8: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Residential-Build with Improvements ..................32 
Table 9: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Full-Build Conditions ...........................................33 
Table 10: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Full-Build with Improvements ............................35 
Table 11: Maximum Queues: Unsignalized ...............................................................................36 
Table 12: Maximum Queues: Signalized ...................................................................................37 

LIST OF FIGURES 

 
Figure ES-1: Site Plan ................................................................................................................ iv 
Figure ES-2: Residential-Build Recommended Improvements ................................................... vi 
Figure ES-3: Full-Build Recommended Improvements .............................................................. vii 
Figure 1: Site Location and Study Area Map .............................................................................. 3 
Figure 2: Proposed Site Plan ..................................................................................................... 4 
Figure 3: 2021 Existing Lane Configurations and Traffic Control ................................................ 7 
Figure 4: 2026 No-Build Lane Configurations and Traffic Control ............................................... 8 
Figure 5: Residential Build Trip Distribution ...............................................................................12 
Figure 6: Commercial Trip Distribution ......................................................................................13 
Figure 7: Residential-Build Trip Assignment ..............................................................................14 
Figure 8: Commercial Trip Assignment .....................................................................................15 
Figure 9: Pass-by Trip Distribution ............................................................................................16 
Figure 10: Pass-by Trip Assignment .........................................................................................17 
Figure 11: 2021 Existing Traffic Volumes ..................................................................................21 
Figure 12: 2026 No-Build Traffic Volumes .................................................................................22 
Figure 13: 2026 Residential-Build Traffic Volumes ....................................................................23 
Figure 14: 2026 Full-Build Traffic Volumes ................................................................................24 
Figure 15: Residential-Build Recommended Lane Configurations .............................................39 
Figure 16: Full-Build Recommended Lane Configurations ........................................................41 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  i 
 

Executive Summary 

The proposed Wait Avenue Mixed-Use Development is located along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) in Rolesville, NC.  In 

general, the 42-acre site is located in the southwest corner of the NC 98 intersection with SR 1945 (Averette Road).  

The site is envisioned to consist of 120 single-family detached housing units, 200 multi-family housing units, 30,000 

square feet of office, and 120,000 square feet of retail.  The development is anticipated to be completed in 2026. 

At full build-out, the development is anticipated to generate 9,838 new trips per average weekday.  In the AM and PM 

peak hours, the development will generate approximately 434 trips (216 entering and 218 exiting) and 671 (326 

entering and 345 exiting), respectively.  

Residential units are envisioned to be constructed before the commercial uses; therefore, the site is analyzed in two 

phases.  The first phase is residential-only and the second phases consists of the ultimate build-out (i.e. full-build).  

As no development schedule is known at this time for the commercial uses, both phases of development are 

analyzed in 2026. 

Four (4) access points are proposed for the development.  Access points A, B, and C will connect to NC 98, Access 

point D will be connected to Averette Road. The site plan is shown in Figure ES-1. 

This study evaluates the ability of the adjacent roadways to accommodate the additional traffic and to recommend 

transportation improvements needed to mitigate congestion that may result from the site traffic. This report presents 

trip generation, trip distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for improvements needed to meet anticipated 

traffic demands. This report examines the following scenarios for the AM and PM peak hours: 

• Existing (2021) 

• Future Year (2026) No-Build 

• Future Year (2026) Residential-Build 

• Future Year (2026) Residential-Build with Improvements 

• Future Year (2026) Full-Build 

• Future Year (2026) Full-Build with Improvements 

Capacity analyses for the AM and PM peak hours in each scenario were performed for the following intersections: 

• NC 98 at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard 

• NC 98 at Carrie May Lane / Access A 

• NC 98 at Averette Road 

• Averette Road at Old Pearce Road / Access D 

• Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

• NC 98 at Access B 

• NC 98 at Access C 

Table ES-1 shows a summary of the delays and levels of service for the study area intersections. 

The study shows that intersections within the study area are anticipated to operate with long delays and queues in 

the future year of 2026 without the proposed development in-place.  Delays are anticipated to continue to be present 

with construction of the proposed development.  However, the results presented herein show that the recommended 

improvements associated with this development will mitigate the traffic it generates. 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  ii 
 

Based on the findings of this study, specific improvements have been identified and are recommended to be 

completed as part of the proposed development.  These improvements are listed below. 

Recommendations: 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

The below improvements are recommended to be constructed during the residential phase of the development: 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 175 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a southbound right-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Modify the traffic signal with respect to the recommended geometric improvements 

The below improvements are recommended to be constructed with the full-build phase of the development: 

• Construct a southbound left-turn lane with 250 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Extend the northbound left-turn lane from the storage intended to be constructed by the Elizabeth Heights 

development to full-width between NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Old Pearce Road / Access D 

• Modify the traffic signal with respect to the recommended geometric improvements 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

Averette Road at Old Pearce Road / Site Access D 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection during the residential phase of the development.  The below 

improvements are recommended to be constructed with the full-build phase of the development: 

• Construct Access D as a full-movement access point 

• Construct Access D with one ingress and one egress lane 

• Construct an eastbound shared thru/right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A 

The below improvements are recommended to be constructed during the residential phase of the development: 

• Construct Access A as a full-movement access point 

• Construct Access A with one ingress and one egress lane 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a westbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a northbound shared thru/right-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

It should be noted that the construction of the eastbound right-turn lane may be limited due to available right-of-way.  

If so, the amount of full-width storage may be reduced.  Coordination should occur between the applicant, their 

representatives, and NCDOT to determine whether the amount of full-width storage should be reduced. 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  iii 
 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B 

The below improvements are recommended to be constructed during the residential phase of the development: 

• Construct Access B as a right-in / right-out only access point 

• Restrict access with the installation of appropriate channelization along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• Construct Access B with one ingress and one egress lane 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access C 

The below improvements are recommended to be constructed with the full-build phase of the development: 

• Construct Access C as a right-in only access point 

• Restrict access with the installation of appropriate channelization along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• Construct Access C with one ingress lane 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

Recommended improvements associated with the residential phase of the development are shown in Figure ES-2.  

Recommended improvements associated with the full-build phase of the development are shown in Figure ES-3. 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  iv 
 

Figure ES-1: Site Plan 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  v 
 

Table ES-1: Level of Service & Delay Summary 

 

X (X) LOS (Delay)
Unsignalized Intersection
Signalized Intersection

# No level of serv ice or delay prov ided
## Delay exceeds 300 seconds
- (-) No movement

Legend:



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  vi 
 

Figure ES-2: Residential-Build Recommended Improvements 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

  vii 
 

Figure ES-3: Full-Build Recommended Improvements 

 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  

May 24, 2021 

  1 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION  

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the traffic impacts of the proposed Wait Avenue Mixed-Use Development 

located in Rolesville, NC.  This development is located along NC 98 (Wait Avenue), generally in the southwest 

quadrant of the NC 98 intersection with SR 1945 (Averette Road).  The development’s location and study area are 

shown in Figure 1. 

Currently, the 42-acre site consists of a combination of undeveloped farmland and forested land.  Construction of the 

site is anticipated to be completed in 2026.  At full build-out the site is envisioned to provide the following land uses 

and densities: 

• 120 single-family detached housing units 

• 200 multi-family housing units 

• 30,000 square feet of office 

• 120,000 square feet of retail 

The Wait Avenue Mixed-Use Development is expected to be constructed in two phases: Phase 1 is planned to 

incorporate the entirety of the residential component; and Phase 2 is expected to add the commercial (i.e. retail and 

office) uses. 

Figure 2 shows the conceptual site plan prepared by Stewart, Inc. for the residential phase.  A site plan has not been 

produced for the commercial phase. 

The purpose of this report is to evaluate the development in terms of projected vehicular traffic conditions, evaluate 

the ability of the adjacent roadways to accommodate the additional traffic, and to recommend transportation 

improvements needed to mitigate congestion that may result from additional site traffic. This report presents trip 

generation, trip distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for improvements needed to meet anticipated 

traffic demands. The analysis examines the AM and PM peak hours for the 2021 existing, 2026 no-build, 2026 

residential-build, 2026 residential-build with improvements, 2026 full-build, and 2026 full-build with improvements. 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  

May 24, 2021 

  2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  

May 24, 2021 

 3 
 

Figure 1: Site Location and Study Area Map 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Introduction  

May 24, 2021 

 4 
 

Figure 2: Proposed Site Plan 

 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  

May 24, 2021 

 5 
 

2.0 INVENTORY OF TRAFFIC CONDITIONS 

2.1 STUDY AREA 

Stantec coordinated with the Town of Rolesville and the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) 

Division 5, District 1 to determine the appropriate study area and assumptions for this study. The final scoping 

document is included in the appendix. The following intersections were agreed upon to be analyzed to determine the 

associated impacts of the proposed development. 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road   existing signalized intersection 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane   existing two-way stop-controlled intersection 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road    existing signalized intersection 

• Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road    existing two-way stop-controlled intersection 

• Averette Road at Old Pearce Road    existing two-way stop-controlled intersection 

2.2 PROPOSED ACCESS 

 Figure 3 shows a diagram of the existing lane configurations, geometry, and traffic control features in the study area. 

2.2.1 Residential Phase Access 

Access to the residential phase is envisioned to be provided by two access points. 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access A 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B 

Access A is proposed to be a full-movement driveway located along Wait Avenue at Carrie May Lane.  This will add a 

fourth leg to the existing three-legged intersection.  Intersection control will be provided by stop signs on Carrie May 

Lane and Access A.  Access B is proposed to accommodate right-turns in and right-turns out (RIRO) of the proposed 

development.  It is anticipated to be located approximately 850 feet west of the signalized intersection of Wait Avenue 

at Averette Road. 

2.2.2 Commercial Phase Access 

Access to the commercial phase is envisioned to be provided by two access points: 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access C 

• Averette Road at Access D 

Access C is proposed to accommodate right-turns in only (RI) of the proposed development.  Right-turns out are not 

recommended at this access point as analysis shows that queues from the signalized intersection of Wait Avenue at 

Averette Road often extend past this driveway.  Access C is located approximately 350 feet west of Averette Road.  

Access D is proposed to be a full-movement driveway located along Averette Road at Old Pearce Road.  This will 

add a fourth leg to the existing three-legged intersection.  Intersection control will be provided by stop signs on Old 

Pearce Road and Access D. 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  

May 24, 2021 

 6 
 

2.3 EXISTING ROADWAY CONDITIONS 

Table 1 provides a detailed description of the existing study area roadway network.  All functional classification and 

average annual daily traffic (AADT) information, where available, was obtained from NCDOT via the NCDOT.gov 

website. 

Table 1: Existing Conditions 

Road Name 
Road 

Number 
Primary Cross-

Section 

Functional 

Classification1 

2019 
AADT2 

(vpd) 

Speed 
Limit 

(mph) 

Maintenance 
Agency 

Wait Avenue NC 98 2-lane/2-way Minor Arterial 17,500 55 NCDOT 

Jones Dairy 
Road 

SR 2053 2-lane/2-way Major Collector 4,700 45 NCDOT 

Averette 
Road 

SR 1945 2-lane/2-way Minor Arterial 3,600 55 NCDOT 

Carrie May 
Lane 

- 2-lane/2-way Local Road Unknown Unposted Unknown 

Old Pearce 
Road 

SR 2055 2-lane/2-way Local Road 900 45 NCDOT 

2.4 FUTURE NO-BUILD ROADWAY CONDITIONS 

Nearby developments have committed to specific improvements to the study intersections.  While the schedule of 

each individual development is unknown, the improvements are assumed to be completed in 2026 before the Wait 

Avenue Mixed-Use Development is constructed.  Those improvements are described in the following subsections.  

The future no-build roadway conditions are shown on Figure 4. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

The Elizabeth Heights (a.k.a. Averette Farms) development has committed to constructing one improvement at this 

intersection: construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane on Averette Road with 200 feet of storage.  This 

improvement is documented in the Thales Academy – Wake Forest TIA (Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., April 

2020).  A copy of this TIA is included in the appendix. 

Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

The Preserve for Jones Dairy (a.k.a. Jones Dairy Road Residential) development has committed to constructing the 

following improvements at this intersection: 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound left-turn lane on Jones Dairy Road with a minimum 50 feet of storage and 

appropriate deceleration and taper length. 

• Construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane on Averette Road with a minimum 150 feet of storage and 

appropriate deceleration and taper length. 

• Monitor for signalization and install a traffic signal if and when warranted. 

These improvements are documented in the Jones Dairy Road Residential TIA (Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc., 

October 2018).  A copy of this TIA is included in the appendix.   



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  

May 24, 2021 

 7 
 

Figure 3: 2021 Existing Lane Configurations and Traffic Control 

 
  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Inventory of Traffic Conditions  

May 24, 2021 

 8 
 

Figure 4: 2026 No-Build Lane Configurations and Traffic Control 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation  

May 24, 2021 

 9 
 

3.0 TRIP GENERATION 

Trip generation was performed for the proposed development in two phases.  Trips were estimated using the 10th 

Edition of the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual3.  The manual provides means for 

calculating trips across four setting-types.  That is, city center core, dense multi-use urban, general urban/suburban, 

and rural.  Internal capture was also performed using the National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) 

Report 684 spreadsheet model4.  The calculated internal capture was only applied to the full-build (i.e. Phase 2) as 

this is when a mix of uses is introduced. This trip generation, submitted to the Town and NCDOT for review, and 

including internal capture and trip generation methodology, is located in the appendix. 

3.1 RESIDENTIAL PHASE TRIP GENERATION 

Phase 1 of the Wait Avenue Mixed-Use Development will comprise the residential uses for the proposed site. These 

densities are expected to be 120 single-family detached housing units and 200 multi-family housing units.  Table 2 

shows the number of anticipated trips that will be generated by the North site of the proposed development (Daily, 

AM Peak, and PM Peak entering and exiting).  

Table 2: Residential Phase Trip Generation 

Land Use 
ITE 
LUC 

Size 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit 

Single Family 
Homes 

210 120 Units 1,230 615 615 90 22 68 121 76 45 

Multifamily Homes 
(Low-Rise) 

220 200 Units 1,472 736 736 92 21 71 109 69 40 

Total Trips Generated 2,702 1,351 1,351 182 43 139 230 145 85 

 

3.2 FULL-BUILD TRIP GENERATION 

The full-build scenario for this site adds 30,000 square feet of office and 120,000 square feet of retail to the uses from 

the initial (i.e. residential) phase.  As stated earlier, the full-build includes internal capture due to the mix of uses and 

pass-by trips in the PM Peak associated with the retail use.  Table 3 shows the number of anticipated trips that will be 

generated by the ultimate build-out of the site as currently proposed.  

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Trip Generation  

May 24, 2021 

 10 
 

Table 3: Full-Build Trip Generation 

Land Use 
ITE 
LUC 

Size 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit 

Single-Family 
Homes 

210 120 Units 1,230 615 615 90 22 68 121 76 45 

Multifamily Housing 
(Low-Rise) 

220 200 Units 1,472 736 736 92 21 71 109 69 40 

General Office 710 30 1,000 GFA 330 165 165 58 51 7 98 18 80 

Shopping Center 820 230 1,000 GFA 6,806 3,403 3,403 212 131 81 622 299 323 

Subtotal 9,838 4,919 4,919 452 225 227 950 462 488 

Internal Capture 
ITE 
LUC 

Size 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit 

Single-Family 
Homes 

210 120 Units    -3 -1 -2 -11 -8 -3 

Multifamily Housing 
(Low-Rise) 

220 200 Units    -2 0 -2 -10 -7 -3 

General Office 710 30 1,000 GFA    -6 -4 -2 -22 -9 -13 

Shopping Center 820 230 1,000 GFA    -7 -4 -3 -36 -15 -21 

Pass-Bys 
ITE 
LUC 

Size 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit 

Shopping Center 820 230 1,000 GFA       -200 -97 -103 

Adjusted Trip 
Generation 

ITE 
LUC 

Size 

Daily AM Peak PM Peak 

Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit 

Single-Family 
Homes 

210 120 Units 1,230 615 615 87 21 66 110 68 42 

Multifamily Housing 
(Low-Rise) 

220 200 Units 1,472 736 736 90 21 69 99 62 37 

General Office 710 30 1,000 GFA 330 165 165 52 47 5 76 9 67 

Shopping Center 820 230 1,000 GFA 6,806 3,403 3,403 205 127 78 386 187 199 

 Total Trips Generated 9,838 4,919 4,919 434 216 218 671 326 345 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 11 
 

4.0 TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION 

4.1 SITE TRIP DISTRIBUTION 

To accurately determine the effect of the proposed development on the surrounding roadway network, an estimate of 

the expected distribution of traffic entering and exiting the site is needed. Separate distributions were developed for 

the residential uses and the commercial uses. The following percentages were used in the AM and PM peak hours 

for the proposed site: 

Residential Uses 

• 60% to/from the west via NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• 10% to/from the east via NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• 30% to/from the south via Averette Road 

Commercial Uses 

• 40% to/from the west via NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• 20% to/from the east via NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• 40% to/from the south via Averette Road 

These percentages were developed using a combination of existing traffic volume counts, historic AADTs provided by 

NCDOT, and engineering judgment.  This trip distribution was submitted to the Town and NCDOT for review as part 

of NCDOT’s TIA Scoping Checklist contained in the appendix.  Trip distribution for the residential uses and 

commercial (i.e. office/retail) uses are shown in Figure 5 and Figure 6, respectively.  Trip assignment for the 

residential phase and commercial are shown in Figure 7 and Figure 8, respectively.  All traffic volume calculations 

can be found in the appendix. 

4.2 PASS-BY TRIPS 

According to the NCDOT Rate versus Equation spreadsheet, the retail shopping center (land use code 820) allows 

for the use of 34% pass-by trips in the PM peak hour.  These trips were calculated after internal capture trips were 

subtracted and were verified to be less than ten percent (10%) of the volumes on NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Averette 

Road.  Pass-by trip distribution is shown in Figure 9 whereas pass-by trip assignment is shown in Figure 10. 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 12 
 

Figure 5: Residential Build Trip Distribution 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 13 
 

Figure 6: Commercial Trip Distribution 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 14 
 

Figure 7: Residential-Build Trip Assignment 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 15 
 

Figure 8: Commercial Trip Assignment 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 16 
 

Figure 9: Pass-by Trip Distribution 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 17 
 

Figure 10: Pass-by Trip Assignment 

 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Distribution  

May 24, 2021 

 18 
 

 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 
 
 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  

May 24, 2021 

  19 
 

5.0 TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

All traffic volume calculations can be found in the appendix. 

5.1 AVAILABLE DATA 

Morning (7:00 – 9:00 am) and evening (4:00 – 6:00 pm) turning movement counts were taken from prior studies as 

follows: 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard   Jan. 31, 2018 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road       Nov. 7, 2017 

• Averette Road at Old Pearce Road       Nov. 7, 2017 

• Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road       Sept. 5, 2018 

Traffic counts were not collected at the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane.  The Thales 

Academy – Rolesville, NC TIA (Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., April 2018) provided the following discussion: 

“Since ITE indicates that the 9 single-family homes along Carrie May Lane generate fewer than 8 
entering and 8 exiting trips in the peak hours, traffic counts were not collected at the intersection of 
NC 98 at Carrie May Lane.  As a minimum 4 peak-hour trips were analyzed for each turning 
movement in the study area.” 

These traffic counts were grown by a 2% annual rate to the existing year of 2021. All traffic count data can be found 

in the appendix. 

5.2 VOLUME BALANCING 

Having been grown to 2021, traffic volumes for the AM and PM peak hours were balanced between all study 

intersections along both NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Averette Road.  The balanced existing (2021) volumes are shown 

in Figure 11. 

5.3 FUTURE TRAFFIC GROWTH 

Future traffic growth is the increase in traffic volumes due to usage increases and non-specific growth throughout the 

area. The 2021 existing volumes were grown by a 2% annual rate to estimate the 2026 volumes.  A figure showing 

the future traffic growth can be found in the appendix. 

5.4 APPROVED DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC 

There are five (5) approved developments within the study area and details are as follows: 

1. The Austin Creek subdivision is located along Austin View Boulevard to the west of the proposed Wait Avenue 

Mixed-Use Development. It is expected to consist of 396 single-family homes and 65 townhomes and be 

complete prior to the full build-out of the subject development.   



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  

May 24, 2021 

  20 
 

2. Tryon Residential development is a proposed project consisting of 281 single-family homes and 134 townhomes.  

This site is located in the southwest quadrant of Averette Road and Oak Grove Church Road and is expected to 

be complete prior to the full build-out of the subject development. 

3. Perry Farms is a proposed residential development located along Averette Road north of Edgefield Drive.  It is 

anticipated to consist of 116 single-family homes and also to be completed prior to the full build-out of the subject 

project. 

4. The Preserve for Jones Dairy, also known as Jones Dairy Road Residential, is a proposed residential 

development located in the northwest quadrant of Averette Road and Jones Dairy Road consisting of 250 

townhomes and 600 single-family homes and is expected to be completed in 2024. 

5. Thales Academy Wake Forest is a proposed private school development located in the northwest quadrant of 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Averette Road. This school is anticipated to have a maximum enrollment of 1,100 

students (550 in K-5 and 550 in 6-12) and be completed by 2028. 

Figures detailing trips associated with each of the approved developments are included in the appendix.  Pertinent 

info related to each of these approved developments is included in the appendix. 

5.5 NO-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

The future traffic growth and approved development traffic volumes were added to the existing volumes to determine 

the no-build traffic volumes.  The 2026 no-build traffic volumes are shown in Figure 12. 

5.6 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

To obtain the total 2026 residential build traffic volumes, the distributed site traffic shown in Figure 7 was added to the 

respective no-build traffic volumes shown in Figure 12.  The total AM and PM peak hour turning movement volumes 

for the study intersections were then calculated and analyzed for the 2026 residential-build scenario. The 2026 

residential build-out traffic volumes are shown in Figure 13. 

5.7 FULL-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

To obtain the total 2026 full-build traffic volumes, the distributed site traffic shown in Figure 8 and pass-by traffic 

shown in Figure 10 were added to the respective no-build traffic volumes shown in Figure 12.  The total AM and PM 

peak hour turning movement volumes for the study intersections were then calculated and analyzed for the 2026 full-

build traffic scenario. The 2026 full-build traffic volumes are shown in Figure 14. 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  

May 24, 2021 

  21 
 

Figure 11: 2021 Existing Traffic Volumes 

 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  

May 24, 2021 

  22 
 

Figure 12: 2026 No-Build Traffic Volumes 

 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  

May 24, 2021 

  23 
 

Figure 13: 2026 Residential-Build Traffic Volumes 

 
  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Volumes  

May 24, 2021 

  24 
 

Figure 14: 2026 Full-Build Traffic Volumes 

 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  25 
 

6.0 TRAFFIC ANALYSIS 

Capacity analyses were performed for the roadway network in the project study area.  The traffic analysis program 

Synchro Version 10 was used to analyze all signalized and stop-controlled intersections according to methods put 

forth by the Transportation Research Board’s Highway Capacity Manual (HCM)5. The Highway Capacity Manual 

defines capacity as “the maximum rate of flow at which persons or vehicles can be reasonably expected to traverse a 

point or uniform section of a lane or roadway during a specified period under the prevailing roadway, traffic, and 

control conditions, usually expressed as vehicles per lane per hour.”  

Level of service (LOS) is a term used to describe different traffic conditions and is defined as a “qualitative measure 

describing operational conditions within a traffic stream, and their perception by motorists/ or passengers.” LOS 

varies from Level A, representing free flow, to Level F where traffic breakdown conditions are evident.  At an 

unsignalized intersection, the primary traffic on the main roadway is virtually uninterrupted.  Therefore, the overall 

delay for the intersection is usually less than what is calculated for the minor street movements.  The overall 

intersection delay and the delay for the intersection’s minor movement(s) are reported in the summary tables of this 

report.  Generally, LOS D is acceptable for signalized intersections in suburban areas during peak periods. 

Capacity analyses were completed following NCDOT Congestion Management Capacity Analysis Guidelines6. Table 

4 presents the criteria of each LOS as indicated in the HCM 5. 

Table 4: Level of Service Criteria 

Level of Service 

(LOS) 

Signalized Intersection Control Delay 

(seconds / vehicle) 

Unsignalized Intersection Control Delay 

(seconds / vehicle) 

A ≤ 10 ≤ 10 

B >10 and ≤ 20 >10 and ≤ 15 

C >20 and ≤ 35 >15 and ≤ 25 

D >35 and ≤ 55 >25 and ≤ 35 

E >55 and ≤ 80 >35 and ≤ 50 

F >80 >50 

The Town of Rolesville’s Unified Development Ordinance7, section 9.11.3, establishes the following Level of Service 

Standards: 

(A)  The traffic impact analysis must demonstrate that the proposed development would not cause 
build-out-year, peak-hour levels of service on any arterial or collector road or intersection within the 
study area to fall below Level of Service (LOS) "D," as defined by the latest edition of the highway 
capacity manual, or, where the existing level of service is already LOS "E" that the proposed 
development would not cause the LOS to fall to the next lower letter grade. 

(B)  If the road segment or intersection is already LOS "F," the traffic impact analysis must demonstrate 
that the proposed development, with any proposed improvements, would not cause build-out year peak-
hour operation to degrade more than five percent of the total delay on any intersection approach.  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  26 
 

Capacity analyses were performed for the following conditions. 

• Existing (2021) 

• Future Year (2026) No-Build 

• Future Year (2026) Residential Build 

• Future Year (2026) Residential Build with Improvements 

• Future Year (2026) Full-Build 

• Future Year (2026) Full-Build with Improvements 

The following intersections were included in the capacity analysis for the above scenarios; where applicable: 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access C 

• NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

• Averette Road at Old Pearce Road / Access D 

• Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

SimTraffic runs were completed for all scenarios to observe the predicted traffic operations throughout the study area 

during each of the peak hours.  As is standard practice, ten (10) SimTraffic analysis runs were performed for each 

scenario.  Detailed SimTraffic queuing and blocking reports can be found in the appendix.  Queues for the exclusive 

turn lanes are summarized in tables for each study intersection.  Queues are not reported for intersections that do not 

have exclusive turn lanes.  For simplicity, the greater of the 95th percentile queue as reported by Synchro or the 

maximum observed queue as reported by SimTraffic are shown in the tables. 

All Synchro files and detailed printouts can be found in the appendix.  A summary of the results of the analyses is 

provided in the following sub-sections. 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  27 
 

6.1 2021 EXISTING ANALYSIS 

The 2021 existing scenario results show that all intersections and approaches currently operate at LOS D or better in 

both peak periods with the exception of the southbound approach of Carrie May Lane at NC 98 (Wait Avenue). The 

level of service and delay for the existing traffic conditions are listed below in Table 5. 

Table 5: Level of Service and Delay for 2021 Existing Conditions 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  28 
 

6.2 2026 NO-BUILD ANALYSIS 

In the 2026 no-build conditions, the future traffic growth paired with the number of approved developments in the area 

attribute to higher delays at the study intersections.  This analysis assumes the improvements associated with the 

approved developments are constructed.  These improvements were discussed in Section 2.4, but are also listed 

below: 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

Construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane on Averette Road with 200 feet of storage. 

Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound left-turn lane on Jones Dairy Road with a minimum 50 feet of storage and 

appropriate deceleration and taper length. 

• Construct an exclusive northbound left-turn lane on Averette Road with a minimum 150 feet of storage and 

appropriate deceleration and taper length. 

• Monitor for signalization and install a traffic signal if and when warranted. 

The following observations are noteworthy: 

• The overall level of service at the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande 

Boulevard is D in both the AM and PM peak hours.  However, the northbound and southbound approaches 

operate at LOS E. 

• The southbound approach of Carrie May Lane at NC 98 (Wait Avenue) operates with high delays. 

• The intersection and all approaches to the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road operate at LOS 

F during both peak hours. 

The no-build level of service and delay are listed in Table 6. 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  29 
 

Table 6: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 No-Build Conditions 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  30 
 

6.3 2026 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD ANALYSIS 

In the 2026 residential-build scenario, observations are similar to those provided in the no-build analysis.  The 

residential-build level of service and delay are listed in Table 7.  The following observations are noteworthy: 

• The overall level of service at the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande 

Boulevard increases slightly, causing the AM peak hour to operate just beyond the threshold of LOS E.   

• Synchro is reporting acceptable delays on the stop-controlled approaches of Carrie May Lane and Access A.  

However, these approaches are anticipated to operate with long delays due to high traffic volumes on NC 98 

(Wait Avenue).   

• The intersection and all approaches to the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road operate at LOS 

F during both peak hours. 

Table 7: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Residential-Build Conditions 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  31 
 

6.4 2026 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD WITH IMPROVEMENTS ANALYSIS 

Based on the findings of this study, specific improvements have been identified and should be completed as part of 

the residential phase of this development.  The recommendations are illustrated in Figure 15.  The specific 

improvements are listed below and detailed in Section 8.1. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 175 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a southbound right-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Modify the traffic signal with respect to the recommended geometric improvements 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A 

• Construct Access A as a full-movement access point 

• Construct Access A with one ingress and one egress lane 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a westbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a northbound shared thru/right-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B 

• Construct Access B as a right-in / right-out only access point 

• Restrict access with the installation of appropriate channelization along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• Construct Access B with one ingress and one egress lane 

The residential-build with improvements level of service and delay are listed in Table 8. The following observations 

are noteworthy: 

With the recommended improvements in-place, the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road continues 

to operate at LOS F.  However, overall delay at the intersection is reduced.  Delay increases on the westbound 

approach to the intersection in the PM peak hour, but this represents less than a five-percent increase in delay on the 

approach.  This increase is acceptable according to the Town Unified Development Ordinance7. 

Both the northbound and southbound approaches to the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / 

Access A operate at LOS F.  This is consistent with the no-build scenario and can be attributed to high traffic volumes 

on NC 98 (Wait Avenue). 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  32 
 

Table 8: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Residential-Build with Improvements 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  33 
 

6.5 2026 FULL-BUILD ANALYSIS 

The 2026 full-build analysis includes traffic associated with the ultimate build-out of the development and assumes 

the improvements recommended as part of the residential phase are constructed.  The full-build level of service and 

delay are listed in Table 9. 

As shown in the table, the addition of development traffic adds to delay at the study area intersections.  It should be 

noted that Access C is not shown.  This is due to Access C serving right-turns in only.  High delays are observed at 

the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road as well as the unsignalized approaches of Old Pearce 

Road and Access D at Averette Road. 

Synchro is reporting acceptable delays on the stop-controlled approaches of Carrie May Lane and Access A.  

However, these approaches are anticipated to operate with long delays due to high traffic volumes on NC 98 (Wait 

Avenue). 

Table 9: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Full-Build Conditions 

 
  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  34 
 

6.6 2026 FULL-BUILD WITH IMPROVEMENTS ANALYSIS 

Based on the findings of this study, specific improvements have been identified and should be completed as part of 

full-build of this development.  The recommendations are illustrated in Figure 16.  The specific improvements are 

listed below and detailed in section 8.2. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

• Construct a southbound left-turn lane with 250 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Extend the northbound left-turn lane from the storage intended to be constructed by the Elizabeth Heights 

development to full-width between NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Old Pearce Road / Access D 

• Modify the traffic signal with respect to the recommended geometric improvements 

Averette Road at Old Pearce Road / Site Access D 

• Construct Access D as a full-movement access point 

• Construct Access D with one ingress and one egress lane 

• Construct an eastbound shared thru/right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access C 

• Construct Access C as a right-in only access point 

• Restrict access with the installation of appropriate channelization along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• Construct Access C with one ingress lane 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

The full-build with improvements level of service and delay are listed in Table 10. The following observations are 

noteworthy: 

• The overall LOS of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road is E.  The recommended improvements mitigate the 

development’s impact on the intersection, but due to large increases in traffic, longer delays are anticipated at 

this intersection. 

• The eastbound approach of Access D at Averette Road operates at LOS F in the PM peak hour.  The installation 

of a traffic signal would reduce side-street delays.  However, a signal is not recommended at this location due to 

the close-spacing of Old Pearce Road / Access D from NC 98 (Wait Avenue). 

Synchro is reporting acceptable delays on the stop-controlled approaches of Carrie May Lane and Access A.  

However, these approaches are anticipated to operate with long delays due to high traffic volumes on NC 98 (Wait 

Avenue). 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  35 
 

Table 10: Level of Service and Delay for 2026 Full-Build with Improvements 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  36 
 

7.0 SIMTRAFFIC OPERATIONS 

SimTraffic runs were completed for all analysis scenarios to observe the predicted traffic operations throughout the 

study area during each of the peak hours. As is standard practice, ten (10) SimTraffic analysis runs were performed 

for each scenario to get an average. Detailed SimTraffic Queuing and Blocking reports can be found in the appendix.  

Long queues are observed along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Averette Road.  These are evident in 2026 no-build 

analysis as well as the build scenarios.  This can be attributed to large increases in traffic volume due to background 

growth as well as traffic generated by several approved developments in the area.  These queues extend past the 

driveways of the proposed development, causing queues internal to the development.  This can be alleviated by 

widening NC 98 (Wait Avenue) to a four-lane divided section.  However, such an expansive improvement would not 

be reasonable for this scale of development to perform such an improvement. 

A summary of the maximum queue lengths observed during the simulation is provided in Table 11 and Table 12. 

Table 11: Maximum Queues: Unsignalized 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Traffic Analysis  

May 24, 2021 

  37 
 

Table 12: Maximum Queues: Signalized 

  



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  

May 24, 2021 

  38 
 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the findings of this study, specific improvements have been identified and should be completed as part of 

the proposed development. Except where noted, all intersections are recommended to operate under two-way stop 

control (TWSC), with the site accesses serving as the minor movement(s).  

8.1 RESIDENTIAL-BUILD RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following improvements are recommended to be constructed as part of the residential phase of the development.  

These improvements are illustrated in Figure 15. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 175 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a southbound right-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Modify the traffic signal with respect to the recommended geometric improvements 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

Averette Road at Old Pearce Road 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

• No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A 

• Construct Access A as a full-movement access point 

• Construct Access A with one ingress and one egress lane 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a westbound left-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a northbound shared thru/right-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

It should be noted that the construction of the eastbound right-turn lane may be limited due to available right-of way.  

If so, the amount of full-width storage may be reduced.  Coordination should occur between the applicant, their 

representatives, and NCDOT to determine whether the amount of full-width storage should be reduced. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B 

• Construct Access B as a right-in / right-out only access point 

• Restrict access with the installation of appropriate channelization along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• Construct Access B with one ingress and one egress lane 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  

May 24, 2021 

  39 
 

Figure 15: Residential-Build Recommended Lane Configurations 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  

May 24, 2021 

  40 
 

8.2 FULL-BUILD RECOMMENDATIONS 

Following the construction of the residential phase and associated improvements, the following improvements are 

recommended to be constructed as part of the full build-out of the development. These improvements are illustrated 

in Figure 16. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road 

• Construct a southbound left-turn lane with 250 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Extend the northbound left-turn lane from the storage intended to be constructed by the Elizabeth Heights 

development to full-width between NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Old Pearce Road / Access D 

• Modify the traffic signal with respect to the recommended geometric improvements 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

Averette Road at Old Pearce Road / Access D 

• Construct Access D as a full-movement access point 

• Construct Access D with one ingress and one egress lane 

• Construct an eastbound shared thru/right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

• Construct a northbound left-turn lane with 225 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection beyond those recommended as part of the residential phase. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B 

No improvements are recommended at this intersection beyond those recommended as part of the residential phase. 

NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access C 

• Construct Access C as a right-in only access point 

• Restrict access with the installation of appropriate channelization along NC 98 (Wait Avenue) 

• Construct Access C with one ingress lane 

• Construct an eastbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of full-width storage and appropriate taper 

 

 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Recommendations  

May 24, 2021 

  41 
 

Figure 16: Full-Build Recommended Lane Configurations 



WAIT AVENUE MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Conclusions 

May 24, 2021 

  42 
 

9.0 CONCLUSIONS 

The study shows that intersections within the study area are anticipated to operate with long delays and queues in 

the future year of 2026 without the proposed development in-place.  Delays are anticipated to continue to be present 

with the proposed development in-place.  However, the results presented herein show that the recommended 

improvements associated with this development will mitigate the traffic it generates. 

10.0 REFERENCES 

1 NCDOT Functional Classification Map, 

http://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?layers=029a9a9fe26e43d687d30cd3c08b1792 

2 2019 NCDOT Average Daily Traffic Volumes,  

https://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?webmap=b7a26d6d8abd419f8c27f58a607b25a1 

3 Trip Generation (10th Edition), Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), September 2017. 

4 NCHRP Report 684: Enhancing Internal Trip Capture Estimation for Mixed-Use Developments.  Washington, 

D.C.: Transportation Research Board, 20151. 

5 Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition: A Guide for Multimodal Mobility Analysis. Washington D.C.: 

Transportation Research Board, 2016. 

6 NCDOT Congestion Management Capacity Analysis Guidelines. North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT), July 2015, 
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Congestion%20Management/
Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf 

7 Unified Development Ordinance. Town of Rolesville, November 14, 2019, 
https://library.municode.com/nc/rolesville/codes/unified_development_ordinance 

APPENDIX 

A link containing all relevant files is electronically sent with this report: 

• NCDOT Scoping Checklist 

• Site Plan 

• Traffic Count Data 

• Approved Development Information 

• Traffic Volume Calculatoins 

• Synchro and SimTraffic Files 

• Traffic Signal Plans 

 

https://ncdot.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?webmap=b7a26d6d8abd419f8c27f58a607b25a1
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Congestion%20Management/Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/safety/Congestion%20Mngmt%20and%20Signing/Congestion%20Management/Capacity%20Analysis%20Guidelines.pdf
https://library.municode.com/nc/rolesville/codes/unified_development_ordinance


The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services 
for all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need 
assistance or a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
1. Rolesville celebrated a milestone of 10,000 residents. 

 

2. Cobblestone Village development began site grading at N. Main Street. 

 
3. Permit issuance kept on pace issuing only 4 dwelling permits less in 2021 

than in 2020. 

 

4.  Publix erected their “Coming Soon” sign on S. Main Street. 

 
5. Six (6) Commercial Businesses opened or relocated to larger spaces in 

town showing positive growth over the two (2) businesses that opened in 

2020. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

For more information or assistance,  
Please contact: 
Shelly Raby, Development Specialist 
Phone: 919-554-6517 
shelly.raby@rolesville.nc.gov 
 

2021 
DEVELOPMENT 

YEAR IN REVIEW  

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

mailto:shelly.raby@rolesville.nc.gov


 1 
 

 

The Planning Department issued a total of 604 additions, alterations, commercial, demolition, 

manufactured, new single-family, townhomes, trade permits, and Environmental Services 
issued 108 permits for erosion control in 2021.  
 

 
 

In 2021 the Town of Rolesville issued 4 new dwelling building permits less than last year in 
2020 (195 permits were issued in 2021 vs 199 permits were issued in 2020). 
 

 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

New Single-Family
Dwelling

Townhome
(attached) Dwelling

Manufactured
Home Dwelling

170

28
1

199

170

24

1

195

2020 vs 2021 New Residential Dwelling Building Permits issued

2020 vs 2021 New Residential Dwelling Building permits issued 2020

2020 vs 2021 New Residential Dwelling Building permits issued 2021

Permitting Activity 



 2 
 

Permits by Month 
 

 
 
 

Permitting By The Numbers 
 

 
 
 

Amendments, 36

Certificates of 
Compliance, 

Completion, Close-
outs, 438

Commercial, 18

Demolition, 2
Foundation 
Surveys, 47

Manufactured 
Homes, 1

New Single-Family 
Dwellings, 170

Residential 
Additions/ 

Alterations, 160

Townhomes, 24

Trades, 229

PERMITTING BREAKDOWN BY TYPE



 3 
 

Permits Closed 
 
The Planning Department issued 438 Certificate of Occupancies, Certificate of Completion, Certificates 
of Compliance, and closeouts. Environmental Services closed 116 erosion control permits. 

 
 
 

Developments Finished in 2021 
 

1. Averette Ridge final Certificate of Occupancy issued 11.19.2021 
 
2. Willoughby final Certificate of Occupancy issued 12.13.2021 

 



 4 
 

Developments with permits in progress  
 
Barrington Townhomes, final phase   32 lots available,    06 permits issued,  0 lots remain 
Carlton Pointe P 3, final phase   30 lots available,    17 permits issued,  6 lots remain 
Chandlers Ridge P1    40 lots available,    35 permits issued,  5 lots remain 
Elizabeth Springs P1    39 lots available,    27 permits issued,  1 lot remains 
Elizabeth Springs TH’s P1   54 lots available,    27 permits issued,  27 lots remain 
Granite Falls P6, final phase   34 lots available,    03 permits issued,  0 lots remain 
Perry Farms P1,2,3    113 lots available,   22 permits issued,  39 lots remain 
Stonewater P5, final phase   208 lots avaialbe,    03 permits  issued,  1 lot remains 

 

 
 

Developments projected to request permits in 2022  
 
A-Masters Townhomes   047 lots 
Chandlers Ridge P2    022 lots 
Granite Crest P3    019  lots 
Preserve at Jones Dairy (S)  122 lots 
Regency at Heritage   027 lots 
The Townes at Carlton Pointe  053 lots  
 
 
 
 



 5 
 

New Businesses opened in 2021  
 
 

1. Osborne Chiropractic Office relocated to the former Urgent Care facility. 
 

2. Access Physical Therapy opened at 600 S. Main Street 
 

3. Rolesville Physical Therapy opened at 258 Southtown Circle 
 

4. Law Office of Michael Paul opened at 511 S. Main Street 
 

5. Elan Dental Office opened at 310A South Main Street 
 

6. Be Like Missy opened at 6134 Rogers Road 
 
 

                         
 
 
 
 
 

Potential New Businesses opening in 2022  
 
 

1. Triangle Family Dentistry   
 

2. Concinnity Health Direct Primary Care 
 

3. Gladwell Orthodontics  



The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services 
for all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need 
assistance or a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
1. Public Works Facility- ANX 21-05 and MA21-07 APPROVED 

 

2. Broughton Townhomes- MA20-03 DENIED 

 
3. Wallbrook- ANX21-06 and MA21-09 APPROVED  

 
4. Wallbrook Infrastructure Improvement Agreement & 

Roadway Reimbursement Agreement- APPROVED 

 

5. The Point South Townhomes- SP20-04 APPROVED 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

For more information or assistance,  
Please contact: 
Shelly Raby, Development Specialist 
Phone: 919-554-6517 
shelly.raby@rolesville.nc.gov 
 

JANUARY 2022 
DEVELOPMENT 

REPORT 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

mailto:shelly.raby@rolesville.nc.gov


 1 
 

 

Developments  

CURRENT RESIDENTIAL PERMITS ISSUED 
Summary of Activity  

 

 
 

 
 

 
ETJ/ Non-Sub 

     

     
02 

 
02 

 
 
 

Total 
Residential 
Permits Issued 

 482 77 50 50 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Subdivision 

Total 
Buildable 

Lots 

Total 
Permits  Issued 

Per Development 

Un-permitted 
Lots 

Remaining 

Permits 
Issued in 
January 

Permits 
Issued 
YTD 

Carlton Pointe 
301 295 06 05 05 

Chandler’s 
Ridge 

40 36 04 26 26 

Elizabeth 
Springs 

51 50 01 0 0 

Perry Farms 
113 74 39 01 01 

TOTAL 505 455 50 
 

32 32 

Eliz. Springs 
Townhomes 

54 27 27 16 16 

 

TOTAL 

 
 

54 
 

 
 
 

27 

 
 
 

27 
 

 
 
 

16 

 
 
 

16 
 
 



 2 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
The Town of Rolesville has experienced an overall increase in permitting activity compared  
to this time last year. 
 

 
 

16

5

11

45

11

99

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

New Single-Family Dwellings

New Townhomes

Certificate of Occupancy

All Permit Types Issued

Permits issued in 2021 vs 2022

Jan 2022 vs Jan 2021

Aug-21 Sept 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22

All Permits 63 47 73 81 52 99

Trade 17 11 23 17 24 19

Residential Alterations/Accessory 11 12 24 15 3 15

Certificates of Completion/Compliance 15 5 19 23 8 18

Certificate of Occupancy 7 5 15 19 19 11

New Townhomes 0 0 16

New Single-Family Dwellings 13 8 18 7 19 34

0

50

100

150

200

250

Permits Issued in the Last 6 Months

New Single-Family Dwellings New Townhomes

Certificate of Occupancy Certificates of Completion/Compliance

Residential Alterations/Accessory Trade

All Permits

Permitting Activity 



 3 
 

Detailed information regarding these projects can be found by clicking on the link provided 
https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/planning/development-projects 
 
Commercial/ Other 

Triangle Medical Group  Carolina Legacy Volleyball   Cobblestone 

Wallbrook   

Residential 

A-Master Team- 47 New Townhomes 

Broughton Townhomes- 57 New Townhomes 

Chandlers Ridge- 90 New Single-Family Homes 

Cobblestone- 176 New Apartments 

Elizabeth Springs- 89 New Single-Family Homes & 98 New Townhomes 

Granite Crest Phase 3- 19 New Single-Family Homes 

Kalas Falls- 484 New Single-Family Homes & 108 New Townhomes 

Perry Farms Phase 2- 33 New Single-Family Homes 

Preserve at Jones Dairy Road Central- 261 New Single-Family Homes & 173 New TH’s 

Preserve at Jones Dairy Road North- 141 New Single-Family Homes & 65 New Townhomes  

Preserve at Jones Dairy Road South- 221 New Single-Family Homes  

Preserve at Moody Farm- 82 New Single-Family Homes 

Regency at Heritage- 27 New Single-Family Homes  

Rolesville Crossing – 177 New Single-Family Homes & 120 New Townhomes 

The Point- 483 New Single-Family Homes & 324 New Townhomes 

The Townes at Carlton Pointe- 53 New Townhomes 

Wallbrook- 155 New Townhomes 

 

176
90 89

19

484

33

261
141

221
82 27

177

483

47 57 98 108
173

65 120

324

53
155

0
100
200
300
400
500
600

PROJECTS BY THE NUMBERS
Proposed New Apartments

 Development Projects Summary 

https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/planning/development-projects

	2022-02-28 Planning Board Agenda
	2022-01-24 Planning Board Meeting Minutes
	_SUP 21-01 Wait Ave Sub-Pulte fka Thales_PB Memo_FINAL
	Attach 1 - Location Map
	Attach 2 - SUP Application_2020-12-20
	Attach 3 - PUD Master Plan
	Sheets and Views
	PUD MP


	Attach 4 - Proposed Conditions - 02-23-2022
	ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

	Attach 5 - PUD Utility Plan
	Sheets and Views
	PUD MP


	Attach 6 - PUD Slope Analysis
	Sheets and Views
	PUD SA


	Attach 7 - PUD Phasing Plan
	Sheets and Views
	PUD MP


	Attach 8_NGHD Mtg Minutes 2021-05-18_
	NEIGHBORHOOD meeting Summary

	Attach 9_TIA Summary document dated 2021-06-21
	Attach 10_TIA Final Report
	1.0 Introduction
	2.0 Inventory of Traffic Conditions
	2.1 Study Area
	2.2 Proposed Access
	2.2.1 Residential Phase Access
	2.2.2 Commercial Phase Access

	2.3 Existing Roadway Conditions
	2.4 Future No-Build Roadway Conditions
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road
	Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road


	3.0 Trip Generation
	3.1 Residential Phase Trip Generation
	3.2 Full-Build Trip Generation

	4.0 Traffic Distribution
	4.1 Site Trip Distribution
	4.2 Pass-By Trips

	5.0 Traffic Volumes
	5.1 Available Data
	5.2 Volume Balancing
	5.3 Future Traffic Growth
	5.4 Approved Development Traffic
	5.5 No-Build Traffic Volumes
	5.6 Residential-Build Traffic Volumes
	5.7 Full-Build Traffic Volumes

	6.0 Traffic Analysis
	6.1 2021 Existing Analysis
	6.2 2026 No-Build Analysis
	6.3 2026 Residential-Build Analysis
	6.4 2026 Residential-Build with Improvements Analysis
	6.5 2026 Full-Build Analysis
	6.6 2026 Full-Build with Improvements Analysis

	7.0 SimTraffic Operations
	8.0 Recommendations
	8.1 Residential-Build Recommendations
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard
	Averette Road at Old Pearce Road
	Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B

	8.2 Full-Build Recommendations
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Averette Road
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Jones Dairy Road / Traditions Grande Boulevard
	Averette Road at Old Pearce Road / Access D
	Averette Road at Jones Dairy Road
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Carrie May Lane / Access A
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access B
	NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at Access C


	9.0 Conclusions
	10.0 References
	Appendix

	2021 Year in Review  Development Report- Final
	January 2022  Development Report

	Textfield: See attached
	Textfield-0: See attached
	Textfield-1: See attached
	Textfield-2: See attached
	Textfield-3: See attached
	Textfield-4: See attached
	Textfield-5: See attached
	Town of Rolesville Planning-0: 
	Wake County PIN: 1850950449
	Property Owner-0: WFINV, LLC
	Mailing Address: 4641 Paragon Park Rd., Suite 104, Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code: 27616
	Wake County PIN-0: 1850958998
	Property Owner-1: Daley, Jason and Michelle
	Mailing Address-0: 1401 Carrie May Ln., Wake Forest, NC
	Zip Code-0: 27587
	Wake County PIN-1: 1850965586
	Property Owner-2: JA2GA, LLC
	Mailing Address-1: 818 S White St., Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code-1: 27587
	Wake County PIN-2: 1860038619
	Property Owner-3: ExperienceOne Homes
	Mailing Address-2: P.O. Box 25509, Cary, NC
	Zip Code-2: 27512
	Wake County PIN-3: 1860045778
	Property Owner-4: Thales Academy
	Mailing Address-3: 4641 Paragon Park Rd., Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code-3: 27616
	Wake County PIN-4: 1860056400
	Property Owner-5: Henley, Frank and Elizabeth
	Mailing Address-4: 1400 Carrie May Ln., Wake Forest, NC
	Zip Code-4: 27587
	Wake County PIN-5: 1860069006
	Property Owner-6: Thales Academy
	Mailing Address-5: 4641 Paragon Park Rd., Raleigh NC
	Zip Code-5: 27616
	Wake County PIN-6: 1860143789
	Property Owner-7: Thales Academy
	Mailing Address-6: 4641 Paragon Park Rd., Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code-6: 27616
	Wake County PIN-7: 1860151206
	Property Owner-8: Thales Academy
	Mailing Address-7: 4641 Paragon Park Rd., Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code-7: 27616
	Wake County PIN-8: 1860245743
	Property Owner-9: Donald F Williams Trustee
	Mailing Address-8: 1502 Laureldale Ln., Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code-8: 27609
	Wake County PIN-9: 1860250306
	Property Owner-10: Daphne C. Clayton Heirs
	Mailing Address-9: 1420 Averette Rd., Wake Forest, NC
	Zip Code-9: 27587
	Wake County PIN-10: 1860056400
	Property Owner-11: Thales Academy
	Mailing Address-10: 4641 Paragon Park Rd., Raleigh, NC
	Zip Code-10: 27616
	Wake County PIN-11: 
	Property Owner-12: 
	Mailing Address-11: 
	Zip Code-11: 
	Wake County PIN-12: 
	Property Owner-13: 
	Mailing Address-12: 
	Zip Code-12: 
	Wake County PIN-13: 
	Property Owner-14: 
	Mailing Address-13: 
	Zip Code-13: 
	Wake County PIN-14: 
	Property Owner-15: 
	Mailing Address-14: 
	Zip Code-14: 
	Wake County PIN-15: 
	Property Owner-16: 
	Mailing Address-15: 
	Zip Code-15: 
	Wake County PIN-16: 
	Property Owner-17: 
	Mailing Address-16: 
	Zip Code-16: 
	Wake County PIN-17: 
	Property Owner-18: 
	Mailing Address-17: 
	Zip Code-17: 
	Wake County PIN-18: 
	Property Owner-19: 
	Mailing Address-18: 
	Zip Code-18: 
	Wake County PIN-19: 
	Property Owner-20: 
	Mailing Address-19: 
	Zip Code-19: 
	Wake County PIN-20: 
	Property Owner-21: 
	Mailing Address-20: 
	Zip Code-20: 
	Wake County PIN-21: 
	Property Owner-22: 
	Mailing Address-21: 
	Zip Code-21: 
	Wake County PIN-22: 
	Property Owner-23: 
	Mailing Address-22: 
	Zip Code-22: 
	Wake County PIN-23: 
	Property Owner-24: 
	Mailing Address-23: 
	Zip Code-23: 
	Wake County PIN-24: 
	Property Owner-25: 
	Mailing Address-24: 
	Zip Code-24: 
	Wake County PIN-25: 
	Property Owner-26: 
	Mailing Address-25: 
	Zip Code-25: 
	Town of Rolesville Planning-1: 
	Textfield-6: See attached
	Textfield-7: 
	Town of Rolesville Planning-2: 


